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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBYGIVEN THAT THE 81ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF MAHA RASHTRA APEX
CORPORATION LIMITED (HEREINAFTER REFERRED AS “COMPANY”)WILL BE HELD ON WEDNEDAY, 24™ SEPTEMBER
2025 AT11.00 AM THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING ('VC') FACILITY OR OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS ('OAVM') TO
TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31* March,
2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Toappoint a director in place of Mr. Aspi Nariman Katgara (DIN-06946494) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:
3. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification (s) and re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
and pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and on
recommendation of Audit Committee and Board of Directors, M/s P M Agarwal & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries be and are
hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five (5) consecutive financial years commencing from the
conclusion of the ensuing 81" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 86" Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2030
at such remuneration plus applicable taxes and actual out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit as may be
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Directors and/ or Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to
file necessary forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it may in its absolute
discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable to give effect to the above resolution.”

4. Change in Designation of Mr. Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan(DIN;03060429) from Non- Executive Director to
Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modifications the following resolutions as an Special Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act’), the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule IV to the Act, as
amended from time to time, Mr. Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan(DIN;03060429), who is eligible for appointment and who meets the
criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who has submitted a declaration to that effect and whose
appointment has been recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee, be and is hereby appointed as Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company for a period of Five Years i.e. upto August12.2030, not liable to retire by rotation subject to
approval of Shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary to give effect to the above resolution including certifying and filing of
necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies.”

5. Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company with amendment in the Article No. II, IV,VII, X &XXII.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“ RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act’) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and the rules made
thereunder, the consent of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded for altering the Articles of Association of the Company by
way of altration of the following clauses of the Articles of Association in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder by way of striking out the sentence wherever requird.
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Article No|

Heading

Clause No

Particular

INTERPRETATION
AND DEFINITIONS

2

SHARE CAPITAL
AND VARIATION
OF RIGHTS

da.

The authorized share capital of the Company shall be such
amount and be divided into such shares as may from time to
time be provided in Clause V of the Memorandum, payable in
the manner as may be determined by the Board, from time to
time. Any power of the Board, to classify, reclassify, increase,
reduce, sub-divide or to repay the same or divide the same
into several classes, and to attach thereto any rights,
privileges or conditions or to consolidate or subdivide or
reorganize the shares, subject to the provisions of the Act,
and to vary such rights as may be determined in accordance
with these Articles and permissible by law, shatHbe-exercised

by-the-Board-onty-with-the-prior-consent-of-the-nvestors-in
aceordance with-thenvestmentAgreement:

Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles and the
Investment-Agreement, the shares in the capital of the
Company shall be under the control of the Board of Directors
who may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any
of them to such persons, in such proportion and on such
terms and conditions and either at a premium or at par and at
such time as they may from time to time think fit, with-the-prier
written-consent-ofthe-dnvestors. Subject to the provisions of
the Actand these Articles and the Investment Agreement, the
Board may issue and allot shares in the capital of the
Company on payment in full or part of any property or assets
sold and transferred or for any services rendered to the
Company in the conduct of its business and any shares
which may be so allotted may be issued as fully paid-up
shares or partly paid-up shares otherwise than for cash, and
if so issued, shall be deemed to be fully paid-up shares or
partly paid-up, as the case may be provided that option or
right to call of shares shall not be given to any person or
persons  without the sanction of the Company in General
Meeting. (Amended pursuant to Special Resolution
passed by the Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on April 5,2018)

MRACL 8’131 Annual Report 2024-25
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Article No| Heading Clause No Particular

9.a. Subject to the provisions of these Articles and—the
Investment-Agreement, if at any time the share capital is
divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached
to any class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of
issue of the shares of that class) may, subject to the
provisions of section 48, and whether or not the company is
being wound up, be varied with the consent in writing of the
holders of three-fourths of the issued shares of that class,
or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a
separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.

Vil TRANSFER OF 2 MPSHdh&k&FP&iﬂﬂd—MfS—J—&yﬂ—PﬂfShﬁHﬁf—beeﬁﬂﬂeéfe
SHARES selt-any-shares held by-the the-Company.-without

23 Inter-se transfersbetweenMr-SudhakarPat-and-Mrs-Jaya

24 ) ) ” ied

Agreement:
Subject to the provisions of these Articles and—the
X ALTERATION OF 41 Investment-Agreement, the Company may, from time to
CAPITAL time inits general meeting, by ordinary resolution, increase

the share capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of
such amount, as may be specified in the resolution,

49 Subject to the provisions of these Articles—ane—the
Investment-Agreement, the Company may, by special

resolution, reduce in any manner and with, and subject to,
any incident authorized and consent require by law, -

COVENANT 85 he-Company shal-netineurany Financia d.ebEed ess

XXII

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company or the Company Secretary, be and is hereby authorised to
doallsuchacts, deeds and things as are necessary to give effect to the resolution.”
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NOTES:

1)

9)

Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI
Circular”) and other applicable circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force and as amended from time to time,companies are allowed to hold EGM/AGM through Video
Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members at a common venue. In
compliance with the said Circulars,EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic
means, as the authorised e-voting agency.

The Company has enabled the Members to participate at the 81"AGM through VC facility. The instructions for participation by
Members are given in the subsequent pages. Participation at the AGM through VC shall be allowed on a first-come-first-
served basis.

As per the provisions under the MCA Circulars, Members attending the 81" AGM through VC shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has provided the facility to Members to exercise their right to vote by electronic means both through remote-
voting and e-voting during the AGM. The process and instructions for remote e-voting are provided in the subsequent
paragraphs. Such remote e-voting facility is inaddition to voting that will take place at the 81st AGM being held through VC.

Members joining the meeting through VC, who have not already cast their vote by means of remote e-voting, will be able to
exercise their right to vote through e-voting at the AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the
AGM may also join the AGM through VC but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The Company has appointed M/s P M Agarwal & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, as theScrutinizers to scrutinize the e-
voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

As per the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attendand
vote on his/her behalf. Since the 81°AGM is being held through VC as per the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members
has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be made available for the
81%AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

Corporate Members are required to access the link https://www.cdslindia.com and upload a certified copy of the Board
resolution authorizing their representative to vote on their behalf. Institutional investors are encouragedto attend and vote at
the meeting through VVC.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only suchjoint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

10) Inline with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the notice of the81*AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 are being sent only by

electronic mode to those Members whosee-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may
please note that this Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will also be available on the Company's website at
https://www.maharashtraapex.com,websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited atwww.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively.

Members who have not registered their e-mail address are requested to register the same in respect of shares held in
electronic form with the Depository through their Depository Participant(s) and in respect of shares held inphysical form by
writing to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Purva Shareregistry (India) Pvt Ltd, 9 Shiv Shakti Industrial
Estate, 7-B J R Boricha Marg, Opp: Kasturba Hospital, Lower Parel (E), MUMBAI-400 011

12) The following documents will be available for inspection by the Members electronically during the 81* AGM. Members seeking

toinspect such documents can send an email to mracl.ho.@manipal.com

a) Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personneland their shareholding, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements
inwhich the Directors are interested, maintained under the Companies Act, 2013.

b) All such documents referred to in this Notice and the Explanatory Statement.

13) The details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the 81 AGM are provided in Annexure Aof this Notice. The Company has

received the requisite consents/declarations for the re-appointment under the Companies Act, 2013 andthe rules made
thereunder.

14) Inaccordance with the proviso to Regulation 40(1) of the Listing Regulations, effective from April 1, 2019, and SEBI notification

dated January 24, 2022, transfers of securities of the Company including transmission and transposition requests shall not be

MRACL 81%
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processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. Accordingly, shareholders holding equity
shares in physical form are urged to have their shares dematerialized so as to be able to freely transfer them, eliminate all risks
associated with physical holding and participate in corporate actions.

15) SEBI has mandated the updation of PAN, contact, Bank account, specimen signature and nomination details, against
folio/demat account. PAN is also required to be updated for participating in the securities market, deletion of name of deceased
holder and transmission / transposition of shares. As per applicable SEBI Circular, PAN details are to be compulsorily linked to
Aadhar details by the date specified by Central Board of Direct Taxes. Members are requested to submit PAN, or intimate all
changes pertaining to their bank details, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-
mail address, contact numbers, specimen signature (as applicable) etc., to their Depository Participant ("DP") in case of
holding in dematerialised form or to Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents through Form ISR-1, Form ISR-2 and
FormISR-3 (as applicable) available at https://www.purvashare.com in case of holdings in physical form.

16) Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make nomination in respect of their shareholding in
the Company. The Nomination FormSH-13, prescribed by the Government can be obtained from the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent or the Secretarial Department of the Company atits registered office.

17) Asthe 81"AGM s being held through VV/C, the route map is not annexed to this Notice.
E-Voting System - For Remote e-voting and e-voting during AGM.

1. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM
will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

2. Thevoting period begins on Sunday 21 September, 2025 at 9.00 am (IST) and ends on Tuesday 23 September, 2025 at5.00 p
m. During this period Shareholders of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the
cut-off date of Wednesday 17, September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by
CDSL for voting thereafter.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING:
Individual Shareholders holding shares in Demat mode with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL”)

1. Gotowww.cdslindia.com, click on the “Login” icon, and select the “New System Myeasi” Tab. Users registered with CDSL Easi
| Easiest can log in with their existing user ID and password. They will find an option to access the e-voting page without
needing any other authentication. Unregistered users shall select the “Registration” option and proceed with login thereafter.

Alternatively, users can access the e-voting page directly by entering their Demat Account Number and PAN and selecting the
“E-voting” option on the homepage at www.cdslindia.com. The system will confirm the user’s identity by sending an OTP to the
mobile and email registered in the DematAccount.

2. After logging in, users can find “Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited” and choose the option for e-voting or joining the
meeting. They can also view the “Voting Status” on this page. Additionally, in case the Company's name is not available, a
separate link to access thee-voting portal of CDSL s provided on the page.

Individual Shareholders holding shares in Demat mode with National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL”)

1. Go to https://eservices.nsdl.com and select “Beneficial Owner” under the “Login” section in IDeAS. Users registered with
IDeAS can log in with their existing user ID and password. Unregistered users can register at https://eservices.nsdl.com and
select “Register Online for IDeAS” or go to https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Alternatively, users can access the NSDL e-voting system at www.evoting.nsdl.com and click the “Login” icon in the
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. Users shall enter the User ID (sixteen- digit demat account number with NSDL) and
Password/OTP.

2. After logging in, click “Access toe-voting” to reach the e-voting page. Select the company name “Maha Rashtra Apex
Corporation Limited” to cast votes / join the meeting. Additionally, in case the Company's name is not available,a separate link
to access the e-voting portal of CDSL s provided on the page.

Alternatively, users can login through their Depository Participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for the e-voting facility and use
the login credentials of their demat account for accessing the e-voting / join meeting options.
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Non-individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode with CDSLor NSDL,and All Shareholders holding shares
in Physical form

1. Gotowww.evotingindia.com and click on “Shareholders”and log in using the User ID as applicable:
a. For CDSL:16 digits beneficiary ID
b.For NSDL:8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits Client ID
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form:Folio Number registered with the Company

If a demat account holder had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company,
then the existing password is to be used.

First-time users may follow the below steps:

Option1- PAN Enter 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department(Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number/e-votingCode sent by
Company/RTAor may contact the Company/RTA.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
Option 2 - Dividend recorded in demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Bank Details OR Date

of Birth (DOB) If both the details are not recorded with the Depository or Company please enter

the memberid/folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the e-voting page for Maha Rashtra Apex
Corporation Limited. These login details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notice. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will Now reach the' Password Creation’ menu,
requiring them to enter their login password in the new password field. These login details can be used tologin
to the CDSL platform atany time.

2.Click on the EVSN for Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited tocast votes/join the meeting.

Additional instructions for Non-Individual Shareholders & Custodians

2. Non-individual shareholders (i.e.,otherthan Individuals,HUF,NRI,etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register in the “Corporates” module.

3. A scanned copy of the registration form bearing the entity's stamp and signature should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

4. After receiving the login details, a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User could link the account(s) for which they wish to vote.

5. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. Once the accounts are
approved, they can cast their votes.

6. Ascanned copy of the board resolution and power of attorney (POA) they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if
any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the Scrutinizer to verify.
Alternatively, non-individual shareholders are required to send the relevant board resolution/authority letter, etc., to
the Scrutinizer and the Company at mracl.ho@manipal.com if they have voted from the individual tab and not
uploaded the same in the CDSL e-voting system for the Scrutinizer to verify.

Individual Shareholders holding Shareholders facing any technical issue in login can contact the CDSL
securities in Demat mode with CDSL Helpdesk by sending a request to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
orcallingat18002109911.

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Shareholders facing any technical issue in login can contactthe NSDL
in Demat mode with NSDL help desk by sending a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in or calling at
02248867000 and 02224997000.
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If you have anyquestions or issues regarding attending Meetings and e-voting from the e-votingsystem, you may
refer to the Frequently Asked Questions(“FAQs”) and e-votingmanual available at www.evotingindia.com, under
the “HELP”section.

All grievances connected with the facility forvoting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi,Sr.Manager,(CDSL) Central Depository Services(India)Limited, AWing, 25thFloor,Marathon Futurex,Mafatlal
Mill Compounds, N M JoshiMarg,LowerParel (East), Mumbai-400013 or send an e-mail to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.comorcall at 1800 2109911.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE
AS UNDER:

01)
02)
03)

04)
05)

06)

07)

08)

09)

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for e-
voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful
login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be
eligible to vote atthe AGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during
the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot
may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable
Wi-Fior LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker
by sending their request in advance atleast7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have
queries may send their queries in advance7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at mracl.ho@manipal,com. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by
email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
system available during the AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have
not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

Acopy of this notice is placed on the website of the Company and the website of CDSL.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 47 of the Companies Act, 2013 the PreferenceShareholders ofthe Company are entitled to
vote on all the resolutions as mentionedin the aforesaid Notice.

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer Report shall be placed on the Company'swebsite —
www.maharashtraapex.com and the website of CDSL within two days of passing the resolutions at the AGM of the Company
and communicated to Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company arelisted.

By Order of the Board

Date: August 13, 2025 For Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
Place: Bengaluru

(K B Shetty)
Chairman
DIN-01451944
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
Explanatory Statements under Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

IltemNo.3

In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013, read with the rules framed there under, and Regulation 24A of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), every listed entity is required to
undertake Secretarial Audit by a Peer Reviewed Secretarial Auditor who shall be appointed by the Members of the Company, on the
recommendation of the Board of Directors, for a period of five consecutive years. Based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board, at its Meeting held on May 30, 2025, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company, approved
appointment of M/s. P M Agarwal & Co., Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, for a term of five (5)
consecutive years, to hold office of the Secretarial Auditor from the Financial Year 2025 upto Financial Year 2030.

M/s P M Agarwal & Co., firm of Practicing Company Secretaries having an experience of 8 years in consultancy and providing
services in compliance under corporate laws in India. The firm operates all over India.Ms. Priyanka Agarwal, (ACS) a Company
Secretary having membership of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. She has been a consultant in corporate laws in
India and has been providing services to various Companies in compliance and procedures under The Companies Act, 1956, The
Companies Act, 2013, Law related to Intellectual Property Rights, The Limited Liability Partnership Act 2008 and The Foreign
Exchange ManagementAct, 1999.

Ms. Agarwal has been rendering Secretarial Services to the Company since 2021-22 on yearly assignment basis.

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for approval of the aforesaid appointment of the Secretarial Auditors. The Board
recommends the approval of the Members for appointment of Secretarial Auditors and passing of the Ordinary Resolution set out at
ltem No. 3 of this Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in this Resolution.

IltemNo.4

The Members of the Company are informed that based on the approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
had accorded its approval for the appointment of Mr.Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan as an independent director of the Company for a
consecutive term of 5 (five) years, not liable to retire by rotation. Subject to approval of Member.

He shall be paid remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or committees thereof or for any other meetings as
may be decided by the Board, reimbursement of expenses for participating in the Board and other meetings and profit related
commission within the limits stipulated under Section 197 of the Act. Copy of the letter of appointment of Mr. Nagarajan
Sivaramakrishnan as an independent director of the Company, setting out the terms and conditions of appointment shall be
available for inspection during business hours on all working days from the date of dispatch of this t Notice at the registered office of
the Company, until the last date of remote e-voting.

The Board noted the resumé of Mr. Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan and following discussions, theBoard is of the view that given Mr.
Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan’s knowledge, past track record and capabilities, his appointment would be beneficial growth of the
Company.

The members are further informed that Mr. Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan has given his consent to be appointed as a director of the
Company in Form DIR-2 under Section 152(5) of the Act and has provided notice of interest under Section 184 of the Act.

The Company has also received a declaration from Mr. Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan declaring that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act read with Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. He further
confirmed that he is not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other such authority. His name
is included in the independent director database of the India Institute of Corporate Affairs as per the ID Rules and has provided the
registration certificate for the same.

Disclosures as required under Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings and applicable regulation of the Listing Regulations and
other applicable laws are set out below.

None of the other directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives areconcerned or interested, financial or
otherwise, in the resolution.
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The Board recommends the resolution set forth in ltem No. 4 for the approval of the membersas a special resolution.
Item No.5

Itis proposed to amend the existing Articles of Association (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Articles’) of the Company to delete certain
clause as given in resolution since it is no longer required. Accordingly, the clauses of the Articles of Association as mentioned in the
Resolution are proposed to amend. The proposed draft Articles of Association after incorporation of the abovementioned changes
is available for inspection of the shareholders of Company at the registered office of company on all working days (during business
hours) upto the date of Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends the above resolution for your approval by way of a Special
Resolution.

None of the other directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives areconcerned or interested, financial
orotherwise, in the resolution.
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Disclosure Relating To Directors Seeking Appointment/re-appointment At The Forthcoming Annual General Meeting Pursuant To
Regulation 36 (3) Of Sebi(listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 And Clause 1.2.5 Of The Secretarial

Standard 2 On General Meetings:

Board

Particulars Aspi Nariman Katgara Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan
Director Identification No. 06946495 03060429
Date of Birth 30" August, 1953 17" September, 1961
Nationality Indian Indian
Date of First Appointment on the 22" December, 2017 29" May, 2024

as wellas inadministration

Qualification M.Com,C.A.LILB Graduation in dairy technology from
Gujarat Agriculture University with
distinction and an MBA from Indian
Institute of Management (Ahmedabad).

Experience 50 years experience in Financial Sector | Mr. Nagarajan has over 24 years of

experience in private sector. He headed
Mother Dairy for seven years gaining
experience across three diverse
businesses vegetables, edible of oil
fresh and milk, fruits and dairy sector.
Previously he worked at Frito Lay India
(part of Pepsi Group) as National Head
of Sales. He has held key leadership
roles in manufacturing and sales in big
consumer companies like Cadbury and
Nestle.

Name of Listed entities in which
theperson also holds the Directorship

M/s Polo Queen Industrial and Fintech
Limited

1.Swaraj Engines Ltd
2.Vadilal Industries Limited

Chairman/ Member in the Committees
of the Boards of companies in which
he is Director*

Member-Audit Committee of the
Company.

Chairman Audit Committee & NRC -
Vadilal Industries Ltd, Member of Audit
Committee and NRC - Swaraj Engines
Ltd..

appointment

Terms & Conditions of appointment/re-

Terms and Conditions as per
appointment letter

Appointment as Non-Executive,
Independent Director, for a period of 5
years

Remuneration to be paid

Rs.9.00lacs painacapacity
of Managing Director

Nil

Remuneration last drawn

Rs.9.00lacs p ain a capacity
of Managing Director

Nil
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CIN: L85110KA1943PLC001177
Registered Office: 3rd Floor, Front Wing, North Block, Manipal Centre,
Bengaluru, Karnataka-560 042
Tel no: 080-40313131 Fax No: 080-25587189
Email Id: mracl.ho@manipal.com, Website: www.maharashtraapex.com

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Shareholders,
MahaRashtra Apex Corporation Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 81*Annual Report on the business and operation of the company and the accounts
for the financial year ended 31" March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS:
The financial summary for the year 31*March, 2025 along with the corresponding figures for the previous year are as under

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Standalone Consolidated

Particulars Sl No. 2024-25 2023-24 | 202425 2023-24
Revenue from operations A 44,05 668.52 136.09 871.39
Other income B 617.25 193.53 655.01 211.92
Sub total C=A+B 661.30 862.05 791.10 1083.31
Total expenses including
depreciation and finance cost D 181.39 180.01 284.78 394.89
Profit before tax & extraordinary
& exceptional items C-D=E 479.91 682.04 506.32 688.42
Share of Profit/ (Loss) of Associates | F - - 767.48 32373.60
Exceptional items G 1,101.14 237.58 1,106.71 239.51
Current Tax H 411.91 150.27 414.76 153.64
Tax (adjustment of tax for earlier years) | | - - -0.21 -2.05
Profit After Tax J=E+F+G-(H+l) | 1,169.14 769.35 1,965.96 33,149.94
Other Comprehensive income K 467.73 32,228.37 26.99 22.56
Total Comprehensive income L=J+K 1,636.87 32,997.72 1992.95 33,172.50

2.REVIEW OF OPERATION AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

During the year under review, the business operations of Company generated revenue ofINR661.30 lacs inclusive ofdividend
income of INR569.53 lacs from investment in its associate company. The net profit before tax isSINR 479.91 lacs as compared to net
profit ofINR 682.04lacs for the previous year. Profit for the year after taxINR 1169.14 lacs compared to profit ofINR 769.35 lacs for
the previous year.

The Company is not carrying out any activity as a Non-Banking Financial Company and is under Scheme of Arrangement as
approved by Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka under Section 391 of Companies Act 1956. Presently the company is engaged only in
recovery of its assets and repayment of liabilities under the said arrangement.

3. RESERVE & SURPLUS:

The profit after tax of INR1169.14 lacshas been transferred to the reserves for the year ended on 31* March, 2025.
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4.DIVIDEND:
No dividend is recommended in view of the accumulated losses and the need to retain funds to meet the deposit liabilities.
5.SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AND PUBLIC DEPOSIT:

In terms of Scheme of arrangement sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka, the Company has on its part has
clearedfour instalments in full and paying the 5" instalment. TheCompany has givenPublic notice to the Deposit/Bond holders in
News Paper on 14" May, 2019 to surrender their Certificates and collect their final instalment dues. The outstanding Principal plus
interest due wasINR 1827.00 lacs as on 31%March, 2024 andINR 1809.03 lacsas on 31* March,2025.

The Company has deposited INR 13,95,74,920/- with High Court of Karnataka, towards outstandingPrincipal plus accrued interest
dues to the publicupto 31* March 2002, bysale of quoted shares, mutual funds, immovable property and debt recoveries. TheGroup
Companies are holding bonds & deposits of the Company worth INR 437/- lakhs which are pending for the repayment.

The Shareholders are informed that the winding up case CA 564/2010 in COP 37/2003,filed by a group of deposit holders against
the company has been disposed of in favour of the company by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka.

During the year, Company has not taken any public deposit falling under the purview of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.
6.CHANGE INTHE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year.

7.DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year
under review are as under:

Appointment/Re-appointment

Mr. Nagarajan Sivarmakrishnanwas appointed as a Non-ExecutiveNon-Independent director of the Company with effect from
29.05.2024 on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors. The members of
the Company approved the said appointment by way of ordinary resolution passed on 26 August 2024 through postal ballot
conducted by remote e-voting process.

Retirement by Rotation

Pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.Aspi Nariman Katgara (DIN: 06946494), Director, is liable
to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM of the Company and being eligible, have offered himself for re-appointment. The Board
recommends his re-appointment.

Detailed information on the directors is provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on date of report

DIN/PAN Board of Directors and Designation

Key Managerial Personnel
01451944 Kudi Bhoja Shetty Chairman-Non-Executive Non-Independent
06946494 Aspi Nariman Katgara Managing Director-Executive Director
07133349 Jyothi Vishweshwaraiah Bhadravathi Independent- Non-Executive Director
07897995 Yazdin Jimmy Mistry Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
06904529 Vidya Mananjay More Independent-Non - Executive Director
03060429 Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
AACPP7417J Jamsheed M Panday Chief Financial Officer/ Company Secretary

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

MRACL 8'1St Annual Report 2024-25 15



Maha Rashtra Apex

soss Corporation Limited

8. Committees of the Board:
a) AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee comprised of the following members:

Name of the Director Category

Sri Aspi Nariman Katgara Executive-Director-Member

Smt. Jyothi V B Chairperson- Independent Non-Executive-Director
Smt. Vidya Mananjay More Member- Independent Non-Executive-Director

b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of the following members

Name of Director Category

Mr. K B Shetty Member-Non-Executive-Non-Independent Director
Mrs. Jyothi V B Chairperson- Independent Non-Executive-Director
Mrs. Vidya M More Member-Independent Non-Executive Director

c) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprised of the following members:

SI.No | Name ofDirector Category of Directorship

1. Mr. K B Shetty Member-Non-Executive-Non-Independent
2. Mrs. Jyothi VB Chairperson-Non-Executive-Independent

3. Mr. Yazdin Jimmy Mistry Member-Non-Executive-Non Independent

9. Remuneration to Directors and other employees:

The Board is comprised of Managing Director, 3 non-executive directors and 2 independent directors. Only Managing
Director is paid remuneration and non-executive directors and independent directors are not paid any remuneration.

Ratio of remuneration of director to the median remuneration of the employees:

Name of the director Ratio to median remuneration of the employees
Sri Aspi Nariman Katgara 1:4.24
Managing Director

) NoPercentageofincrease in remuneration has been made to Managing Director of your company.
C) Percentage increase in median remuneration of the employeesfor the year ended March 2025: Nil
) Number of permanent employees on the rolls: 19

)

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees and comparison with managerial remuneration
and justification thereof and exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: Due to on-going
arrangement under Section 391 of Companies Act 1956 under the order of Honourable High Court of Karnataka, the
Managing Director is drawing minimum salary compared to industry standards.

F)  Theremunerationis as per remuneration policy of the company.
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The statement containing particulars of employees as required under section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming
part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid annexure. In terms of
section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open forinspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any shareholder interested
in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

Under Section 197(14) of Companies Act 2013, itis hereby informed that none of the directors are in receipt of commission from the
company/from holding/subsidiary company.

10. SUBSIDIARY, JOINTVENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:
The Company has Subsidiary and Associate Companies. Details are given below:

SI.No | NAME AND ADDRESS CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/
OF THE COMPANY ASSOCIATE

01 Maharashtra Apex Asset
Management Company Limited U85110KA1995PLC016881 Subsidiary

02 Eldorado Investments Company

Private Limited U65910MH1986PTC039904 Subsidiary
03 Manipal Crimson Estate & Properties
Private Limited U7010MH1987PTC042955 Subsidiary

04 Kanara Consumer Products Limited | U17214KA1962PLC001443 Associate
05 Manipal Home Finance Limited U85110KA1994PLC016671 Associate
06 Manipal Springs Limited U29309KA1984PLC005964 Associate

Thereis no Joint venture for the Company.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the salient features of financial Statement of Subsidiaries and
Associate Companies in FormAOC-1 as ‘Annexure I' to this report.

11. INTERNALFINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, such
controls were tested and no reportablematerial weakness in the design or operation was observed.

12. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the ends of the
financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this report

13. MEETINGS:

During the financial year ended 31.03.2025, five Board Meetings were held. These meetings were held on 29 May, 2024,
13-August, 2024, 19-September, 2024, 13:November, 2024, and 10~ February 2025.The attendance of the directors is
provided in the Corporate Governance Reportenclosed to this.

a) Audit Committee Meeting:

During the financial year ended 31.03.2025, five Audit Committee Meetings were held. These meetings were held on 27:-May,
2024,12- August, 2024, 18- September,2024, 11- November, 2024 and 8- February, 2025.The attendance of the directors is
provided in the Corporate Governance Reportenclosed to this.

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting:

During the financial year ended 31.03.2025, two Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting were held on 27-May,
2024 and 15+ July, 2024. The attendance of the directors is provided in the Corporate Governance Report enclosed to this.

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting:

During the financial year ended 31.03.2025, five Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings were held. The attendance of
the directors is provided in the Corporate Governance Report enclosed to this.
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14.

15.

16.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has appointed independent directors in terms of Section 149(4) read with Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. The Company has received necessary declarations from the Independent
Directors confirming their Independence.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a detailed Report on Corporate Governance is enclosed. A Certificate from
the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is made as part of this
Report.

RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY:

Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement, sanctioned by the High Court of Karnataka, to repay the deposit liabilities and also in
compliance of RBI restrictions, the Company focused only on recovery of loans and repayment of deposits. At present the risk
is associated with this activity and all efforts are on to manage the delay and shortfall in instalment payments and assessment
ofitsimpacton the Company.

17.POLICIES ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

18.

19.

The Company is covered under Section 178(1) of Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 6 of Companies (Meeting of Board and
its Powers) Rules 2014. Accordingly Section 134(3)(e) of the Act requires the Company to disclose policy on director’s
appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director
and matters relating to remuneration for directors, key managerial personnel and employees. Thehighlights of the said policy is
provided hereunder:

e Thepolicyis recommended by Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board

e The policy provides for criteria for appointment/ continuation of appointment of directors on the basis of requirements
of Companies Act 2013 and Rules made thereunder

e Thepolicy also specifies minimum - qualification, experience and other attributes

e The policy lays down criteria for evaluation of performance of board, committees and individual directors (as
elaborated under separate heading in this report)

o  Othermatters like criteria for removal of directors, components of remuneration...etc are specified by the policy

CONSTITUTION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE AND STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Company is required to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Audit committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee under section 178(1), 177& 178(5) respectively of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.Consequently disclosure pertaining tocomposition thereof and
their recommendations arecovered in Corporate Governance Report. During 2024-25, recommendations of Audit Committee
are accepted by the board. The company has adopted vigil mechanism and the same is available on the website of the
company.

FORMALANNUALEVALUATION:

The Company is covered under Section 134(3)(p) read with Rule 8(4) of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. Accordingly
formal annual evaluationof performance of Board, committees and individual directors have been conducted by the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee in the following manner:

e Theevaluationis doneinternally

o The evaluation is done on the basis of inputs received from the directors regarding the performance of board &
committees as a whole and also of director in individual capacity. Specific inputs have been collected from
Independent Directors regarding performance of Managing Director.

e  Broad parameter for board performance have been the efficiency to guide the company through the process of
recovering the assets and paying-off liabilities under the scheme of arrangement approved by Honourable High
Court of Karnataka under Section 391 of Companies Act 1956. Supplementary parameter is exploring opportunities
for bringing new business opportunities for the company. Specific parameter for Managing Director is achievement of
targets on the said recoveries and payments. Specific parameter for independent directors is attendance at board /
committee meetings and providing independent judgements on the board decisions. Specific parameter for
committees is execution of their terms of reference
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20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

During the year, the Company has not given any loans, provided any securities or guaranteed to any persons within the
meaning of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company had participated in the Rights Issue of Kanara Consumer Products Private Limited (KCPL), one of its Associate
Companies, in March 2025. Pursuant to the allotment, the Company has been allotted 2,99,633 equity shares of INR 10 each
atpar, thereby increasing its shareholding From 40.27 to 40.41.

The participation in the Rights Issue of KCPL is a strategic decision aimed at strengthening the Company’s investment and
enhancing long-term value creation, which will ultimately benefit the Company and its shareholders, including minority
shareholders.

The investments as on 31.03.2025 are provided in the notes to the Standalone Financial statement.
21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, every company having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or
turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during immediately preceding
financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board. As per our Audited Balance
Sheet for the year ended 31+ March, 2025 your Company’s net profit crossed the threshold limit of INR 5 Crores and hence
CSR provision is applicable to the companyfor the financial year 2024-25.

The Details of CSR activities undertaken by the company are given in CSR Report.
22. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 34(2)(e)readwith
Schedule-V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations,
2015 (LODRY)is given in this Annual Report as Annexure —Ilifor the year under review.

23. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

The information relating to energy conservation, technology absorption and research & development pursuant to Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as follows:.
A. Conservation of Energy- Nil

B. Technology absorption:-
i. Efforts made towards technology absorption:Nil
ii. Benefits derived like productimprovement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:Nil
iii. Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year):
a) Details of technology imported - No technology was imported during the year.
b) Year ofimport - Not Applicable
¢) Whether the technology been fully absorbed- Not Applicable
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof - Not Applicable

iv. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development - Your Company is predominantly a service provider and is not
required to set up a formal R&D unit.

C. Duringthe year2024-25, there has been no foreign exchange earnings or outgo.
24. SHARE CAPITAL:

A) Issue of equity shares with differential rights: None

B) Issue of sweat equity shares: None

C) Issue of employee stock options: None

D) Provision of money by company for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees:
None

E) Redemption of securities: Nil

The Company is planning to raise the additional capital of INR 14 crores by issuing shares at par to the existing shareholders
onrightissue basis. The proposed rightissue will enhance shareholder value.

planning to raise additional capital of around 14 crores
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29

30.

31.

DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In accordance with the provisions of section 134(5) the Board confirm and submit the Directors’ Responsibility Statement that

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year
and of the loss of the company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The particulars of every contract or arrangement entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1)

of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto has been
disclosed in Form No.AOC -2 as ‘Annexure II

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS ORTRIBUNALSIMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY:

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

REPORTING OF FRAUD:

The auditor of the company has not reported any fraud under Section 143(12) read with Rule 13 of Companies (Audit &
Auditors) Rules 2014

EXTRACT OF ANNUALRETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has placed a copy of the Annual
Return as at March 31, 2025, on its website at www.maharashtraapex.com.By virtue of amendment to Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to provide extract of Annual Return (Form MGT-9) as part of the Board’s
report.

DISCLOSURE ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013:

The Company is an equal opportunity employer and consciously strives to build a work culture that promotes dignity of all
employees. As required under the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, and Rules framed there under, the Company has implemented a policy on prevention, prohibition and
redressal of Sexual harassment of Women at workplace. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy. Accordingly, an Internal Complaint Committee has been formed and the policy on ‘Anti-Sexual
Harassment'is posted on the website of the Company at www.maharashtraapex.com.

Matters handled by Internal Complaint Committee during the year 2024-25, are as follows:-

*Number of complaints on sexual harassment received during the year: NIL

* Number of complaints disposed off during the year: N.A.

*Number of cases pending for more than 90 days: N.A.

+Nature of action taken by the Employer: N.A.

« Number of Workshops: NIL

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration

20
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of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details are appended to the Directors’
Report.

None of the employees of the Company employed throughout the year were in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits
setoutin Rule 5(2) of the said rules.

32. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:
M/s. H G Sarvaiya& Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 0115705W), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company in the 78-Annual General Meeting held on 28- September, 2022 till the conclusion of the Eighty Third Annual General

Meeting to be held in the year 2027. As per the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, they have confirmed that they are not
disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.

The report of the statutory auditor for the financial year 2024-25 is circulated to the members along with financials for the
saidperiod.
No frauds have been reported by the Statutory Auditors during the financial year 2024-25 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 143(12) of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

33. MANAGEMENT RESPONSE TOAUDITORS’ OBSERVATION
Pursuant to requirements of Section 134 (3) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013, explanation is necessary, as there is qualification,
reservation or adverse remark made by the Statutory Auditors of the Company in their report.
Management Response to the Auditors’ observations:
a) Interest is required to be provided for delays, if any, by the Company in payment of instalment. So, interest was provided up
to 30- September, 2019. The Management decided not to provide interest after 1+ October, 2019 as there was a Public notice
issued by the Company in News Paper on 14- May, 2019 to the bond & deposit holders to surrender their certificates and collect
their final instalment dues. The public notice indicated that the Company is prepared to make the payment without any further
delay. In view thereof, the Company is of the opinion that no provision for delayed period interest is necessary, as the delay was
not from the Company's Part

34. SECRETARIALAUDITOR

The provisions of Section 204 regarding Secretarial Audit are applicable to the company and accordingly the company has
appointed P M AGARWAL & Co, Company Secretaries, as its Secretarial Auditor. SecretarialAudit Report is enclosed to this
report as ‘Annexure IV'. Management response to the Qualifications by Secretarial Auditor is given as the annexure to this
report.

35. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with all the provisions of applicable Secretarial Standards i.e SS-1 and SS-2 issued by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

36. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THEYEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE
FINANCIALYEAR

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

37. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIMEOF ONE-TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
ALONGWITH THE REASONS THEREOF

There was noinstance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.
38. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation extended by employees, investors
and all other associates and look forward to continued fruitful association with all business partners of the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru For Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
. th
Date: 13" August, 2025 KB Shetty
Chairman

DIN: 01451944
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Annexure |
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate
companies or Joint ventures

Part A subsidiaries
(Information inrespect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. in lacs)

< in lakhs
Particulars Maharashtra Eldorado I\éla}nipal
Apex Asset Investments Erltmtson
Management | Company &Spa €
Company Private Limited . roperties
Limited Private
Limited
Relation Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 2002 2002 2002
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company’s reporting period NA NA NA
Reporting currency and exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant financial year in the case of INR INR INR
foreign subsidiaries
Share capital 502.58 100.00 180.00
Reserves and surplus (153.42) 184.84 120.10
Total assets 354.83 303.58 303.95
Total Liabilities 5.67 18.54 3.85
Investments 156.41 0.00 53.46
Turnover 92.03 0.00 0.00
Profit/loss before taxation 19.09 3.46 10.78
Provision for taxation (1.36) 0.00 4.01
Profit/loss after taxation 19.09 3.46 6.77
Proposed Dividend 0.00 0.00 0.00
Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 99.99 81.00 99.99
Notes:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NONE
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NONE
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Part B Associates and Joint Ventures

Statementpursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 relatedto Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

X in lakhs
. . Kanara Manipal Manipal
Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Consumer Home Springs
Products Finance Limited
Limited Limited

Relationship Associate Associate Associate
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2025 31-03-2025 31-03-2025
Date on which the Associate or
Joint Venture was associated or acquired. 2004 2013 Dec1997
No. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures

held by the company on the year end 60,13,334 895000 33990
Amount of Investment in Associates or
Joint Venture 49,719.78 89.77 34.16
Extent of Holding (in percentage) 40.41 38.11 22.97
Description of how there is significant influence | Note-A Note-A Note-A
Reason why the associate/ joint venture is
not consolidated NA NA NA
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet 49,695.05 820.28 -1015.29
Profit or Loss for the year: 3044.72 231.48 7.12
i.Considered in Consolidation Yes Yes Yes
ii.Not Considered in Consolidation NA NA NA

Notes:

A. There is significant influence due to percentage (%) of Share Capital.

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NONE
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year:Nil
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Annexure Il
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NONE
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: NONE

SL |Name of the | Nature of Nature of Period of |Salientterms | Date(s) of Advance
No |Contracting | Relationship | Transaction| Transaction|of the approval by | (paid) /
Party contracts or Fhe Board, r_eceived
arrangement if any: (if any)
or transactions (Rs. In lakhs)
including the
value, if any
Kanara Associate |Advance On-going | Refer to As per the 3300.00
Consumer | company |Received note below | order of
Product for purchase Honourable
Limited of property Karnataka
High Court
dt 25.5.2012
2 Kanara Associate |Advance On-going Refer to 11.08.2021 1273.37
Consumer | company |Received note below
Product for purchase
Limited of property

Note:

1. The company has entered into transaction with M/s.Kanara Consumer Products Limited(Associate Company) for sale of
property situated at Yashwanthpur, Bangalore. The said transaction is as per the order of Honourable Karnataka High Court on
25.05.2012-as a part of on-going scheme of arrangement with depositors

2. Company entered in to an agreement to sell with Kanara Consumer Products Limited, for the sale of Non agricultural Land
measuring 233 cents, including RCC Building with 3, Floors, total Built-up area about 17149 Sgq. Ft situated in 76,Badagubettu
Village, Udupi at survey No 102 /16P2, 16P3,9,12 . As per the agreed terms Purchaser agreed to release the funds out of the
balance purchase price to the vendor as and when required for the payment of companies liabilities to the deposit holders. This
asset along with other assets is earmarked to secure the payment of deposit liabilities as mentioned in CP 30/2003. The time
stipulated in the agreement to sell has expired .The sale and registration of the same in favour of the purchaser is subject to
auction bidding and Karnataka High Court Approval

For and on behalf of the Board
Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited

KB Shetty
Chairman
DIN: 01451944

Place: Bengaluru
Date:13" August, 2025
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Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The percentage increase in remuneration Name & 2023-24 2024-25 % increase
of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Designation (in%.) (inX.) 0
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary |pr Aspi Nariman
or Manager in the financial year 2024-25 Katgarg 10,74,980.00( 10,74,972.00|  0.00
-MD
Mr.Jamsheed
M Panday 701200 | 7012.00 0.00
CS&CFO
The percentage increase in the median The Median Remuneration of Employees (MRE) of the
remuneration of employees in the financial | Company during the financial year 2024-25 was
year 2024-25. Rs. 2,53,356/- and for previous year it was Rs. 2,56,698/-.
The number of permanent employees 19
on the rolls of company

It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company
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ANNEXURE -l
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Your directors are pleased to present the Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025.
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Your Company seeks opportunities in the market. The volatility in stock indices in the financial year under report represents
both an opportunity and challenge for the Company.

Finance market activities in which most of our activities depend on is also influenced by global events andevents happeningin
the country and hence there is an amount of uncertainty in the near term outlook of the market.

However, strong and stable government at centre, the finance market prospect would significantly improve.
SEGMENT WISE/PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company operates in single segment of financial activities and related services during the year under review,
OUTLOOK

The Company is not carrying out any activity as a Non-Banking Financial Company and is under Scheme of Arrangement as
approved by Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka under Section 391 of Companies Act 1956. Presently the company is engaged only in
recovery of dues of Hire Purchase/Lease, Loans and other dues and repayment of liabilities under the arrangement.

In terms of Scheme of arrangement sanctioned by the Hon'’ble High Court of Karnataka, the Company has on its part has
clearedfour instalments in full and paying the 5" instalment. TheCompany has given Public notice to the Deposit/Bond holders in
News Paper on 14" May, 2019 to surrender their Certificates and collect their final instalment dues. The outstanding Principal plus
interest due wasINR1827.00 lacs as on 31* March, 2024 and INR 1809.03 lacs as on 31* March,2025.

The Company has deposited INR 13,95,74,920/- with High Court of Karnataka, towards outstanding Principal plus accrued
interest dues to the public upto 31" March 2002,b ysale of quoted shares, mutual funds, immovable property and debt
recoveries.Group Companies hold bonds & deposits worth X 437/- lakhs which is pending.

The company is hopeful of continuing non-banking business activities after repayment to depositors/bond holders of the
company and clsoure of the company case High Court of Karnataka.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The very nature of the Company’s business makes it subject to various kinds of risks. The Company encounters credit risk and
operational risks in its daily business operations. The Company is not carrying out any activity as a Non-Banking Financial
Company and is under Scheme of Arrangement as approved by Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka under Section 391 of Companies
Act 1956. Presently the company is engaged only in recovery of its assets and repayment of liabilities under the arrangement.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIRADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls to ensure accuracy of accounting records, compliance with all laws
& regulations and compliance with all rules, procedures & guidelines prescribed by the management.Periodical internal audit is
carried out by independent firm of Chartered Accountants-

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the business operations of Company generated revenue of INR 661.30 lacs inclusive ofdividend
income of INR569.53 lacs from investment in its associate company. The net profit before tax is INR 479.91. lacs as compared to
net profit of INR 682.04lacs for the previous year. Profit for the year after tax INR 1169.14 lacs compared to profit of INR 769.35 lacs
for the previous year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The total number of employees in the Company was 19 as on 31st March, 2025. During the year under review there has been
no material development on the Human Resource/Industrial Relations front during the year. The Company places significant
importance toits human capital. The Company has been paying special attention to improve the skill set of the employees.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may be ‘forward looking’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from those
expressed orimplied. Investors are advised to exercise due care and caution while interpreting these statements.
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ANNEXURE-IV
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
03" Floor, Front Wing North Block
Manipal Centre

Bangalore - 560001.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Basedon ourverification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and alsothe information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives, its Statutory
Auditor during the conduct of Secretarial Audit,we here by report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31* March, 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made here in after:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on 31" March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

()  The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The DepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(

iv) Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘'SEBI
Act):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(d)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the
Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
Company during the audit period)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following and we are of the opinion that the Company has
prima facie complied with applicable provisions:

(i) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(i) The Listing Agreement enteredinto by the Company with BSE Ltd. read with the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. Promoter and promoter group shareholding is 100% in demat, except for:
(i) Varada S Prabhu-entire shareholding of 562 equity shares; (they are in physical form).

We further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

2. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
atleast seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

3. Majority decision of the Board of Directors and its Committees is carried through and are captured and recorded as part of
the minutes. There were no dissenting views.

4. We have not examined the Financial Books of the Company, for all these matters, we rely on the Statutory Auditors Report

and their observations as per the Financial Statements for the year ended as on 31* March, 2025.
During the audit period, the Company has conducted the postal ballot for the appointment of Director.
During the Audit period, there were no instances of:

Debentures/ Sweat Equity, etc.

Issue of Equity Shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme;

Redemption/Buy back of Securities;

=

Mergers or Amalgamations;
5. Foreign Technical Collaborations.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events or actions having a major bearing on Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred to above.

Note: This reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure Aand forms an integral part of this report.

Place: Mumbai Proprietor For P M AGARWAL & CO.
Date: 03° July, 2025 Company Secretaries
(Priyanka Poddar)

Peer Review No: 1654/2022

ACS: 51154 CP: 19363
UDIN: A051154G000706061
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*we have observed the following during the process of Audit:

1. The Company has received an email from BSE and NSE dated 28" June, 2024, 15" July, 2024, 23° August, 2024, and 30"
September, 2024 regarding non-compliance of Regulation 33 for non-submission of Consolidated Audited financial results for the
yearended 31.03.2024 within the prescribed time limit, but the fine amounting to Rs. 6,60,800/- has been paid by the Company and
the matter has been closed.

The satisfactory reply and fine was given by the Company for the above query and matter has been disposed off by the Exchange.
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Annexure A
ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,

The Members,

Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
03" Floor, Front Wing North Block,
Manipal Centre,

Bangalore-560001.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year ended 31* March, 2025 is to be read along with this letter.

1. The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation
Limited (the ‘Company) is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited to the
verification of records and procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

2. Maintenance of secretarial and other records of applicable laws is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to issue Secretarial Audit Report, based on the audit of the relevant records maintained and furnished to us by
the Company, along with explanations where so required.

3. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial and other legal records, legal compliance mechanism and corporate conduct.
The verification was done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts as reflected in secretarial and other records produced
to me. We believe that the processes and practices we followed, provides a reasonable basis for our opinion for the purpose of
issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, We have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and major events during the audit period.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Com.

Proprietor For P M AGARWAL & CO.
Place: Mtjmbal Company Secretaries
Date: 03° July, 2025 (Priyanka Poddar)

ACS: 51154 CP: 19363
UDIN:A051154G000706061
Peer Review No: 1654/202
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BOARD’S REPLY TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT OBSERVATIONS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025
To,

The Members,

MahaRashtra Apex Corporation Limited

BENGALURU

Observations:
1. Promoter and promoter group shareholding is 100% in demat, except for:
(i) Varada S Prabhu-entire shareholding of 562 equity shares; (they are in physical form).
Board’s Reply:

All Promoters shares are in Demat form except one promoter shares are in physical form due to the death of the Promoter and company
is making effort to convert these shares into Demated.

Date: 13.08.2025 (K B Shetty)
Chairman

Place: Bengaluru DIN-01451944
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P MAGARWAL & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES
Regd. Off: A-503/504, Rituraj Towers, Om Sai Complex, Bhayander West, Thane-401101.

CERTIFICATEOFNON-DISQUALIFICATIONOFDIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(ListingObligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015)

To

The members of

Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
Bangalore.

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directorsof Maha Rashtra Apex
Corporation Limited having CIN - L85110KA1943PLC001177and having registered office at 3 Floor, Front Wing North Block, Manipal
Centre, Bangalore, Karnataka-560001. (here in after referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of
issuing thisCertificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at
the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that
none of the Directors onthe Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 March, 2025 have beendebarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securitiesand Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Karnataka, Bangalore or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr.No | Name of Director DIN Date of appointmentin Company
1. Mr. Kudi Bhoja Shetty 01451944 | 10/07/2006
2. Mr.Jyothi Vishweshwaraiah Bhadravathi 07133349 | 31/03/2015
3. Mr.Aspi Nariman Katgara 06946494 | 22/12/2017
4, Mrs. Vidya Mananjay More 06904529 | 23/03/2022
5. Mr.Yazdindimmy Mistry 07897995 | 20/10/2020
6. Mr. Nagarajan Sivarama Krishnan 03060429 | 29/05/2024

Ensuring the eligibility off ortheappointment/continuityofeveryDirectorontheBoardistheresponsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thesebased on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Companynorof the efficiency oreffectiveness with which themanagementhas conducted the affairsof
theCompany.

Place: Mumbai For P M AGARWAL & CO.
Date: 03° July, 2025 Company Secretaries
Sd/-
Peer Review No: 1654/2022
UDIN: A051154G000707667 (Priyanka Poddar)
Proprietor

ACS: 51154 CP: 19363
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT- 2025

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY:

The primary motive of the Company is to uphold good Corporate Governance and the management did not spare any effort in
implementing all possible measures by adopting adequate steps in order to achieve this objective.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Composition and category of directors:

As of 31" March, 2025 the total strength of the Board of Directors was six directors. All the directors except the Managing Director
are Non-Executive Directors. 33% of the Board Members consisted of Independent Directors. Composition of the Board of

Directors of the Company and their other Directorship(s)/Committee Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) as on 31st March, 2025 was
asunder:

During the financial year ended 31.03.2025, five Board Meetings were held. These meetings were held on 29" May, 2024, 13"
August, 2024, 19" September. 2024, 13" November, 2024, and 10" February 2025.

The details are follows:

Sl. Name of Category of No of Board Attendance at| No of other No. of other Commiittee
No Directors Directorship Meetings Attended last AGM Directorship | Membership or Chairmanship
Member Chairman
1.| Mr.KB Shetty Non-Executive Director 5 Yes Nil 2 Nil
2.| Mr.AspiNariman
Katgara Executive Director 5 Yes 2 1 Nil
3.| Smt. JyothiVB Independent Non
Executive Director 4 No Nil 3 3
4. MrYazdin Jimmy
Mistry Non-Executive Director 5 Yes 1 1 Nil
5. MrsVidyaMMore | IndependentNon
Executive Director 5 Yes Nil 2 Nil
6.| Mr.Nagarajan
SivaramaKrishnan | Non-Executive Director 3 No 4 4 2

Note: *Excludes directorship in Private Companies, foreign companies, companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and alternate directorships.

Name of other listed entities where Directors of the Company are Directors and the category of Directorship:

S.N.| Name of Director Name of listed entities in which the | 4101y of Directorship
concerned Director is a Director

1. | MrKB Shetty Nil Nil

2. Mr. Aspi Nariman Katgara Polo Queen Industrial
Fintech Ltd. Non-Executive Director

3. | Mrs.JyothiVB Nil Nil

4. MrYazdin Jimmy Mistry Nil Nil

5. Mrs.Vidya Mananjay More Nil Nil

6. Mr. Sivaramakrishnan Swaraj Engines Ltd. Independent Director
Vadilal Industries Ltd. Independent Director
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1. None of the above directors are related inter-se.

2. None of the Directors hold the office of director in more than the permissible number of companies under the Companies Act,
2013 or under the Listing Regulations.

3. Committee Membership and Chairmanship includes in Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee of all public
limited companies, whether listed or not, and excludes private limited companies, foreign companies and Section 8
Companies.

The Committee Chairmanship/Memberships are within the limits laid down in Listing Regulations.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 ‘the Act' and Listing Regulations as laid down under Listing Regulations.

6. None of the Non-executive directors of the company had shares and convertible instruments in the Company. The
familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors is disclosed at company’s website at
www.maharashtraapex.com at Investor relation section.

Skills / Expertise | Competencies of the Board of Directors

The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of the
Company’s business and that the said skills are available with the Board Members:

i) Knowledge on Company’s businesses, policies and culture (including the Mission, Vision and Values), major risks /threats
and potential opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates

ii) Behavioural skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the growth of
the Company

iii) Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex Management, Administration, Decision Making,
iv) Financial and Management skills
v)  Technical / Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s business

Givenbelow is a list of core skills, expertise and competencies of the individual Directors:

sN| Name of Knowledge of | Accounting Behavioral | Technical / Corpor.ate Governance
' Director the Sector and Finance | skills Professional | Compliances And
skills Economic regulation
1 | riKB Shetty v f S L a
Sri Aspi Nariman
2. Katgara v v a e J
3. | Smt. Jyothi V B Vs v r r [
4. | MrYazdin Jimmy
Mistry v T Y s s
5. | Mrs Vidya s = - - -
Mananjay More
6. i
g/l_r. Nagarajan Ve s r r -
ivarama
Krishnan

3. Committees of the Board
a) AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Composition of the Audit Committee meets all the criteria under the law.The members of the Audit Committee possess
financial/accounting expertise and exposure. The Audit Committee consists of the majority of Independent Directors.

The Committee comprises of three Directors. It met five times during the period on 27"May, 2024, 11" August, 2024, 18"
September, 2024, 11" November, 2024 and 8" February, 2025.
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The Audit Committee comprised of the following members:

Name of the Director Category

Sri Aspi Nariman Katgara Executive-Director-Member

Smt Jyothi V B Chairperson- Independent Non-Executive
Director

Smt Vidya Mananjay More Member- Independent Non-Executive
Director

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the annual general meeting held on 28" September, 2023. The Composition
of the committee is in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.The particulars of meetings and attendance by the
members of committee during the year under review as are given in the table below

Attendance of the Directors in the Audit Committee Meeting:

Date of Meeting Members Present
27" May, 2024 Mrs.Jyohti V B

Mrs.Vidya Mananjay More
12"August ,2024 Mrs.Jyohti V B

Mrs.Vidya Mananjay More
18" September, 2024 Mr. Aspi Nariman Katgara

Mrs. Jyohti V B
Mrs. Vidya Mananjay More

11" November, 2024 Mr. Aspi Nariman Katgara
Mrs.Jyohti V B
Mrs.Vidya Mananjay More

8" February, 2025 Mr. Aspi Nariman Katgara
Mrs.Jyohti V B
Mrs.Vidya Mananjay More

Roles and responsibilities of Audit Committee:

(1) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

(2) reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the board
for approval, with particular reference to:

(@) matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the Board’s Report in terms of
clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

) changes, ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c) majoraccounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
) significantadjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f) disclosure of any related party transactions;

g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

—_—
w
=

reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;

reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

—
=
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=
=

(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)

recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company, including their
replacement or removal;

approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

reviewing and monitoring with the management, independence and performance, of statutory and internal auditors,
adequacy of the internal control systems, and effectiveness of audit process;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal auditdepartment, staffing and
seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structurecoverage and frequency of internal audit;

discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or afailure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
reviewing of related party transactions entered into by the Company pursuant to omnibus approval(s), on quarterly basis
scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(16) valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever itis necessary;

(17)

(1

(]
~

to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

Reviewing the financial statements, in particular the investments, if any made by the unlisted subsidiary company(ies)

(19) toreview the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism/vigil mechanism;

(20)

(21)

(22)

approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the
candidate;

reviewing mandatorily the following information:

a) TheManagementDiscussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management;
) Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

) appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chiefinternal auditor / internal auditor(s); and

f) Statementof deviation:

i) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s)
interms of Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations; and

ii) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in
terms of Regulation 32(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Carrying out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced by any statutory / regulatory
requirement, as may be applicable.

Review its Terms of Reference on an annual basis and recommend any changes to the Board;
In terms of the Insider Trading Code adopted by the Company, the Committee shall consider the following matters: —

(i) To approve policies/framework in relation to the implementation of the Insider Trading Code and to supervise
implementation of the Insider Trading Code.

(i) To note and take on record the status reports detailing the dealings by Designated Persons in Securities of the
Company, as submitted by the Compliance Officer on a quarterly basis.

(iii) To provide directions on any penal action to be initiated, in case of any violation of the  Prohibition of Insider Trading
Regulations by any person..
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The powers of the Audit Committee will include the following:

1. Toinvestigate into any matter in relation to the role/terms of reference and to obtain external professional advice, if necessary
and shall have full access to the information contained in the records of the Company;

To seek information from employees and secure attendance of outsiders, if necessary; and

To call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit, including the observations of the
auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with
the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times in a year and not more than 120 days shall elapse between two meetings. The
quorum shall be either two members or one third of the members of the Audit Committee whichever is greater, but there should be a
minimum of two independent members present.

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall be present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to answer shareholder
queries.

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee
b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Board constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee.

Name of Director Category

Mr K B Shetty Non-Executive-Non-Independent Director

Mrs Jyothi V B Chairperson- Independent Non-Executive-Director
Mrs Vidya M More Independent Non-Executive Director

Attendance of the Directors in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting:

Date of Meeting Members Present

27" May,2024 Smt Jyothi VB
Smt Vidya M More

15" July,2024 Smt Jyothi VB
Smt Vidya M More

Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

1. Toformulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director;
2. Todevise apolicy on Board diversity;

3. To identify persons who are qualified to become Director in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the
Board, their appointment/removal;

4. Toidentify persons who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to
the Board, their appointment /removal;

To formulate and recommend to the Board policies relating to the remuneration for:
Directors;

Key Managerial Personnel; and

Other Employees of the Company;

o 0 T o o

To formulate criteria for performance evaluation of independent directors and the Board and to carry out evaluation of every
director’s performance;

7. Torecommend remuneration payable to Managing Directors and Whole-time Directors;
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Torecommend the sitting fees payable, if any to Non-Executive Directors;
. Toreview and recommend nature of services rendered by any director in other capacity and requisite qualification thereof;
10. Todischarge the roles envisaged under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

11.  Determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation ofindependent directors;

12. Reviewits Terms of Reference on an annual basis and recommend any changes to the Board;

13. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced by any statutory / regulatory
requirement, as may be applicable.

Details of remuneration paid to the Whole-Time Director and Managing Director during the period from 1.4.2024 t031.3.2025
is given here below:

i) Whole-Time Director: 0.00

ii) Managing Director : ¥ 10.75 lacs

ii) Non-Executive Directors - Nil

c) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Committee comprising three members of the Board.

Roles and responsibilities of Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

1. Tooversee and review all matters connected with the transfer of the Company’s securities and to approve allotment,
transfer / transmission of securities. As per SEBI notification number SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 08,
2018, transfer of securities of listed companies shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the demat form.
The same shall be effective from April 01, 2019.

2. To consider, resolve and monitor redressal of investors’ complaints/ grievances like non-transfer of securities, non-
receipt of annual reportetc.;

Toapprove issue of duplicate share certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal;
Tooversee the performance of the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent(s);
Torecommend methods to upgrade the standards of services to investors;

Review its Terms of Reference on an annual basis and recommend any changes to the Board; and

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to timeand/or enforced by any statutory /
regulatory requirement, as may be applicable.”

The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee and attendance of members in the meeting are given below:

N o gk~ w

SI.No Name of Director Category of Directorship No. of Meeting attended
1. Mr KB Shetty Non-Executive-Non-Independent 1
2. MrsJyothiV B Chairperson-Non-Executive-Independent 4
3. MrYazdin Jimmy Mistry Non-Executive-Non Independent 5

Mrs. JyothiV B heading the Committee, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

No. of Share Holders Complaints received during the year -6
No. of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders - 6
No. of pending Complaints -0

38 MRACL 81St Annual Report 2024-25



Maha Rashtra Apex

=i Corporation Limited

4. GENERALBODY MEETINGS:
The 78"to 80" Annual General Meetings were held through two-way Video Conference (VC) the details are given here below:

AGM No. DATE TIME Special Resolution required for
78 28.9.2022 12.00 noon *1
79 28.9.2023 12.00 noon Nil
80 26.9.2024 230pm Nil

*Re-appointment of Mr.Aspi Nariman Katgara (DIN 069464941), as Managing Director
All the resolutions as set out in the respective notices were passed by the Share holders. One special resolution was passed
through Postal Ballotin the financial year 2024-25.

5.DISCLOSURES:
Disclosure regarding Material Related Party Transaction:

The Company does not have any related party transactions during the year, that are material in nature either with its promoters
and/or their subsidiary Companies, Directors, Management and relatives etc that may have potential conflict with the interests of
company atlarge

Disclosures regarding non-compliance:

There were no instances of non-compliance or penalty, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any
Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

Vigil Mechanism:

Your Company has in place a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report concern about the unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud and violation of the Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy is in line with your Company’s Code of
Conduct, Vision and Values and forms part of good Corporate Governance.

Compliance with mandatory requirements:

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

6. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
a) Quarterly/Half/Yearly Financial Results of the Company were forwarded to Stock Exchanges in addition to getting the
same published in the leading English Daily (Indian Express) & Regional Newspaper (Kannada Prabha) as per the Listing
Agreementand SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
b) The financial results also displayed on the Company’s website — www maharashtraapex.com
c) Company has not made any presentations to any institutional Investors/Analyst during the year.

7.  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

Consequent upon the cancellation of the NBFC license the Company desisted from accepting deposit and doing Hire
Purchase/Lease/Loan Business. At present Company’s activities are restricted to recovery of Hire Purchase instalments/Loans.
The Company is also concentrating on repayment of Deposit/Bonds as per the Scheme of arrangement/ restructure sanctioned
by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka.

BUSINESS REVIEW:
During the year Company collected 27.60 lakhs by debt recoveries.

REPAYMENT OF DEPOSIT/BOND:

In terms of Scheme of arrangement sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka, the Company has on its part has
clearedfour instalments in full and paying the 5" instalment. TheCompany has givenPublic notice to the Deposit/Bond holders in
News Paper on 14" May, 2019 to surrender their Certificates and collect their final instalment dues. The outstanding Principal
plus interest due was ¥ 1827.00 lacs as on 31% March, 2024 and . 1809.03 lacsas on 31 March, 2025.Towards this liability
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company had deposited INR13,95,74,920/- with High Court of Karnataka, which covered Principal plus accrued interest dues to
the publicupto 31" March 2002, by sale of quoted shares, mutual funds, immovable property and debt recoveries.Group
Companies hold bonds & deposits worth ¥ 437 lakhs which is pending for payment.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:
Thereis internal control commensurate with size and nature of the Company.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
This subject has been covered in the Directors’ Report.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

The company has employed minimum staff which essential to to run the organization. There are only 19 Staff members working in
the entire organization.

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

a)Annual General Meeting: 81* Annual General Meeting
Date: 24" September, 2025
Time: 11.00 am
b) Financial Year: 1% Aprilto 31st March.
d) Dividend: The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the
period 2024-25.
e) Registered Office: 3rd Floor, Front Wing, North Block, Manipal Centre, 47, Dickenson
Road, Bangalore -560042
f) Listing on Stock-Exchanges: The Equity Shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd &

National Stock Exchange Ltd. The Listing Fee for the year 2024-2025
has been paid to both of the Stock Exchanges and custodial fees paid for

the year 2024-2025 to NSDL and CDSL.

g) Stock Code BSE: 523384

NSE: MAHAPEXLTD

h) Demat ISIN Number of Equity Shares INE843B01013As on 31stMarch, 2025

of the Company and liquidity: 1,20,61,515 Equity Shares forming 85.59% Share Capital

of the Company stands Dematerialized.

i) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

M/s Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt Ltd.

Unit MahaRashtra Apex Corporation Ltd

9 Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, 7-B J R BorichaMarg
MUMBAI-400 011

Tel: 23010771, 23016761

Email — support@purvashare.com

Web site — www purvashare.com
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j) Share Price Data:

Market price data of the Company's equity Shares in Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd for the period from
April, 2024 to March 2025 is as below:

Month Open High Low Close | No.of No. of Total
Price Price Price Price Shares | Trades | Turnover (Rs.)
Apr-24 134.80 137.05 121.30 128.65 18,838 1,831 24,66,312
May-24 131.90 176.90 124.75 163.65 | 3,77,955 9,949 6,16,84,964
Jun-24 171.10 183.35 143.55 166.20 | 1,64,338 8,181 2,77,56,307
Jul-24 173.65 183.75 153.80 161.65 | 1,04,662 4,959 1,77,41,328
Aug-24 161.65 218.20 143.70 183.50 | 2,23,992 9,966 4,24,61,899
Sep-24 187.20 192.65 156.20 159.00 28,377 537 48,57,528
Oct-24 159.00 168.50 138.35 151.20 49,023 632 72,89,800
Nov-24 157.00 180.00 144.35 159.45 92,401 3,109 1,49,75,026
Dec-24 166.60 189.70 146.00 148.25 96,933 3,558 1,60,82,833
Jan-25 148.10 157.95 121.00 128.20 57,689 1,976 83,17,123
Feb-25 147.00 147.00 105.00 105.00 21,217 714 26,29,045
Mar-25 120.00 131.40 100.00 104.00 77,782 1,351 87,85,683
k) DISTRIBUTION OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDING ON 31st MARCH, 2025:
SHARE HOLDING OF NUMBER % TO TOTAL AMOUNT INX % TO TOTAL
NOMINAL VALUE OF
() (2) () 4) (5
UPTO 5,000 14,429 90.92 2,04,16,430 14.49
5,001 - 10,000 886 5.58 64,47,690 458
10,001-20,000 308 1.94 43,89,870 312
20,001-30,000 108 0.68 26,76,450 1.90
30,001 - 40,000 25 0.16 8,85,390 0.63
40,001-50,000 17 0.1 8,07,040 0.57
50,001-1,00,000 55 0.35 40,20,020 2.85
1,00,001 &Above 42 0.26 10,12,76,070 71.87
TOTAL: 15,870 100 14,09,18,960 100.00
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1) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31st MARCH, 2025:

Category No. of Shares Held Percentage of Shareholding

A. Directors and Promoters 88,13,105 62.54
B.Trust belongs to Promoter Group 2,192 0.02
C.Relative of Promoters 2,57,270 1.83
B. Institutional Investors 0.00 0.00
C. Mutual Funds and UTI 0.00 0.00
D. Banks 799 0.01
E. Flls 0.00 0.00
F. Private Corporate Bodies 1,00,222 0.71
G. Indian Public 47,50,886 33.71
H. NRI ((Repat& Non-Repat) 22,409 0.16
I. Any other(Please specify)
i.Hindu Undivided Family 1,36,987 0.97
ii.. Trust 2,148 0.03
iii. Clearing Member 5,878 0.03

GRAND TOTAL 1,40,91,896 100

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity - Nil

m) Plant Locations: Nil

n) ADDRESS FOR INVESTORS CORRESPONDENCE:

M/s PurvaSharegistry (India) Pvt Ltd.
Unit MahaRashtra Apex Corporation Ltd
9 Shiv Shakti IndustrialEstate

7-B J R BorichaMarg

MUMBAI-400 011

Phone: (022) 2301 6761E-mail:support@purvashare.com

Web site — www purvashare.com
9.OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of
listed entity atlarge;

During the year 2024-25, there were no materially significant transactions with related parties i.e., directors, management,
subsidiaries, Key Managerial Personnel or relatives conflicting with the Company’s Interest atlarge. Attention of Members is drawn
to the disclosures of transactions with related parties set outin the Notes on Accounts forming part of the Annual Report.

b. Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or
the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years;

The Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities. No penalties were imposed on the Company by
Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related to capital market during the last three years except by
BSE & NSE for non-compliance of provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for delay in uploading Annual
Report. The penalty amount was Rs.2360/- each.

c. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy, and affirmation that no personnel has been denied
access to the audit committee;

With a view to maintain the high standards of transparency in Corporate Governance and in compliance with the Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR), the Company has adoptedWhistle blower policy and effective vigil mechanism system.
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The Whistle blower mechanism enables employees and Directors to raise their concerns about any malpractice, impropriety or
abuse at an early stage and in the right way, without fear of victimization, subsequent discriminationor disadvantage. The policy is
intended to encourage and enable the employees and Directors to raise concernswithin the Company than overlooking the issues
keeping the organizations’ interestin mind. The details of thepolicy are posted on the website. www.maharashtraapex.com.

A Committee has been constituted which looks into the complaints raised and has not received any complaint for the financial year
2024-25. The Committee reports to Audit Committee and the Board.

Subsidiary Companies
The Company has 3subsidiaries and all are operational subsidiaries. Pursuant to the Regulation 24 of

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR) the
Company has adopted a policy for determining’material subsidiary” which is published on the website of the Company at
www.maharashtraapex.com.

d. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements;

The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements relating to Corporate Governance under the Listing
Regulations.

The status of adoption of Non - mandatory requirement provided under Schedule Il (E) of the Listing Regulationis as below;
i. Shareholder Rights

The Company publishes its quarterly/half yearly and annual financial results in English and Regional language newspapers. The
financial results and significant events, if any, are communicated by the Company to the Stock Exchanges and are also uploaded
onits website i.e.www.maharashtraapex.com.

i.Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The Auditors report is with modified opinion.

ii. Reporting of Internal Auditor

The internal Auditor of the Company report directly to the Audit Committee of the Company

f. The Company has laid down the procedures to inform Board Members about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures. The Board is periodically informed about business and other risks and its minimization procedures. Further
there are no disclosures to be made with regards to commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities.

g. The Quarterly Report on Corporate Governance Report, Statement of Investor Complaints, Shareholding pattern and
financial results are posted on the Company’s website www.maharashtraapex.com

h. A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice has been received stating that none of the directors on the Board of
the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

i. During the year, details of fees paid/payable to the Statutory Auditors and all entities in the network firm/network entity
of which the Statutory Auditor is a part, by the Company and its subsidiaries, are given below:

Amountin ¥
Particulars *By the Company | By the Subsidiaries | Total Amount
Audit Fees 2,00,000.00 3,90,000.00 5,90,000.00
Tax Matters 78,280.00 78,280.00
Certification 2,82,500.00 2,82,500.00
Reimbursement - -
Other Services - 0.00 0.00
Total 2,00,000.00 7,50,780.00 9,50,780.00

*The above fees are exclusive of applicable tax.
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Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the aforesaid Act and the Rules framed thereunder, including
constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC). The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
same is available on the Company’s website at www.maharashtraapex.com.

Status of complaints as on 31st March 2025:

1. Number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil

2. Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year: Nil

3. Number of complaints pending at the end of the financial year: NIL

The Company has complied with all the requirements of corporate governance as specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b)
to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Management Personnel, affirmation that
they have complied with the ‘Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2023-24.

Plane : Bengaluru K B Shetty
Date: 13" August ,2025 Chairman
DIN 01451944
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To

CEO /CFO CERTIFICATION

The Board of Directors
MAHARASTRA APEX CORPORATION LTD

Bangalore

We, Managing Director, and Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify to the Board that:

(@)

(b)

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of their
knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

(i) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the yearwhichare
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

(c) We acceptresponsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that they have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and they
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal
controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(d) Wehaveindicated to the auditors and the Audit committee
(i) thereisnosignificant changesininternal control over financial reporting during the year;

(i) thereis no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed
inthe notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) there are no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, of
the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over
financial reporting.

Jamsheed M Panday Aspi Nariman Katgara

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER Managing Director
PAN-AACPP7417J DIN: 06946494
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Maha Rashtra Apex

AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of

Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited

Bangalore.

BACKGROUND:

1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited (‘the Company”), contains details as
stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and paraC, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing
Regulations”) with respect to Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31-March, 2025. This certificate is required
by the Company for annual submission to the Stock exchanges and to be sent to the members of the Company.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the
preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance
Report.

3. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

4. My responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the Listing Regulations referred to in paragraph 1 above.

5. I have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing Standards prescribed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. These standards require that the Auditor to comply with the statutory requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about the compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

6. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance
of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. The procedure includes, but not limited to, verification of
secretarial records and obtained necessary representations and declarations from the Directors including Independent
Directors of the Company.

7. The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report on a test
basis. Further, my scope of work under this certificate did not involve me performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing
an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the financial statements of the Company taken as a
whole.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

8. Based on the procedures performed by me as referred in paragraph 6 and 7 above and according to the information and
explanations given to me, | am of the opinion that the Company has prima facie complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the financial year ended 31:-March, 2025, referred to in
paragraph 1 above.

9. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which
the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company

DISCLAIMER

10. This Certificate is addressed and provided to the Members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with
its obligations under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly,
I do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or
into whose hands it may come without my prior consent in writing. | have no responsibility to update this Certificate for events
and circumstances occurring after the date of this Certificate.

For P M AGARWAL & CO.
Company Secretaries
Place: MumbaiProprietor Sd-
Date: 03° July, 2025 (P"ya’l‘akrz;‘"riéﬁ)?arwa')

ACS: 51154 CP: 19363
UDIN: A051154G000707546
Peer Review No.: 1654/2022
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
(Pursuant to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company, including overview of projects/ programmes undertaken:

Our CSR philosophy extends beyond philanthropy and endeavours to create a significant impact on society. We strive to
channelise our efforts towards community development, thereby contributing to the nation’s growth journey. We partner with
multiple agencies to drive initiatives across the length and breadth of the country. The CSR Policy of the Company, as approved by
the Board of Directors, is available on the Company’s website.

2.Composition of Committee

The provision of Section 135 (9) of the Act provides for an exemption from the requirement to constitution of a CSR Committee,
where the amount to be spent by the company under section 135(5) of the Act does not exceed Rs. 50 lakh in a financial year. In
such cases, the responsibility for discharging the functions of the CSR Committee, as outlined in Section 135 of the Act, can be
directly undertaken by the Board of Directors.

The Company had earlier formed CSR Committee atits meeting held on 29" May 2024, comprising of following members:
a) Mr.AspiNariman Katgara

b) Ms.JyothiVB

c) Ms.VidyaMMore

Since the CSR obligation of the company is less than Rs. 50 Lakhs, the functions of the CSR Committee is discharged by the
Board. Dissolving the committee streamlines decision-making, reduces administrative overhead, and aligns the company’s
governance structure with statutory requirements.

3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed
on the website of the Company:

The web-link is as follows: https://www.maharashtraapex.com/policies.html.

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014:

The provision of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the
Company.

5.Total CSR Obligation and CSR amount spent

Sr.No. | Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
a Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 242
b Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) 4.84
c Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities
of the previous financial year 0.16
d Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5b+5¢-5d) 5.00

6) Total CSR Amount Spent

Sr.No. | Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
A Amount Spenton CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other
than Ongoing Project) 5.00
B Amount spentin Administrative Overheads NA
c Amount spenton ImpactAssessment* NA
D Total amount spent for the financial year (6a+6b+6c) 5.00
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7) CSR amount spent financial year:

Total amount spent Name of the Trust Amount Date of transfer
for the financial where funds are
year (in<.) transferred

2024-25 Manipal Academy of Health & Education | X 5Lakhs | 10" February 2025

8) Total amount unspent for financial year: Not Applicable

9) Excess amount for any set off; Not Applicable

10) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

11) Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the financial year: No

12) Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): N.A.

Place: Bengaluru For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 13" August, 2025 Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
KB Shetty
Chairman

DIN: 01451944
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tothe Members of Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
Reportonthe Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited (‘the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss, (statement of changes in equity) and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter refer to standalone financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2025, and its profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company has not provided for delayed period interest cost on deposit amounting to Rs. 48.14 lakhs for the year ending 31st
March 2025 and Rs. 12.01 lakhs for the quarter ending 31st March 2025, cumulative impact of interest cost not provided from
October 2019 to March, 2025 is Rs. 333.75 lakhs. To that extent profitis overstated and liability is understated.

The Company has not provided for delayed period interest cost on deposit amounting to Rs. 48.14 lakhs for the year ending 31st
March 2025 and Rs. 12.01 lakhs for the quarter ending 31st March 2025, cumulative impact of interest cost not provided from
October 2019 to March, 2025is Rs. 333.75 lakhs. To that extent profit is overstated and liability is understated.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to, the

Revenue Recognition- Divided following:

Refer Note No. 15.a. of the Standalone Financial | ® Assessed the appropriateness of the Company revenue
statement. recognition accounting policies, including those relating to
discounts and rebates in accordance with Ind AS 115;

Receipt of Dividend amount of Rs. 569.53 Lakhsfrom | e  Evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
Associate Company Kanara Consumer Products the Company’s key internal controls, including general and
Limited ("KCPL"). specific information technology controls, exercised
implemented by the management for measurement and
recording of dividend amount;
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Revenue Recognition-Exceptional Income Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to, the

Refer Note No. 19.a of the Standalone Financial following:

statement. e Obtained an understanding of the process followed by the

Exceptional income of Holding Company includes an management for identification and reversal of such liabilities;

amount of Rs.1,000.50 lakhs pertaining to unsecured o Evaluated the appropriateness of the accounting treatment

lease deposits and inter-corporate deposit (ICD) adopted by the Company in accordance with the applicable

liabilities, which are no longer payable have been accounting standards;

reversed during the year against which the tax has e Verified the underlying documentation including

been paid. orrespondence, confirmations, legal opinions (if any), Board
approvals and other relevant records supporting the
management’s assertion that the liabilities are no longer
payable;

o Assessed the basis of management's judgement in
determining that the obligations have ceased and ensured that
such conclusions are reasonable and consistent with available
evidence;

o Verified the computation of exceptional income recognised in
the books of account;

o Checked the tax computation to confirm that appropriate taxes
have been paid on the said exceptional income;

e Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in the financial
statements with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

a) As per the scheme sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka vide order dated 8th October 2004, all
deposits/bonds were required to be repaid by 15th June 2009 / 15th September 2009. The total principal and accrued
interest payable to the public, outstanding as on date, amounts to Rs. 1,370.06 lakhs. During the financial year 2023-24, the
Company deposited Rs. 1,395.75 lakhs with the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka.

b) RBI has cancelled the Certificate of Registration granted to the Company to act as Non-Banking Financial Company by
order Dated 13th June 2002.

¢) Company entered in to agreement for Sale of property with M/s Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon Limited).
Total Amount credited up to 31-03-2025 is 1273.37 lakhs. Time stipulated in the agreement has lapsed.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of (a) to (c) of above paragraph
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board 's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. These are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. Except for the matters described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section above, we have nothing to this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Statement

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
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includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under Section
143(10) of the Act, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial control with reference to financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board of Directors;

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the
Statement represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

a) The Company's investment of 50,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each in M/s Eldorado Investments Company (P) Ltd., a
subsidiary company physical Shares were not available for verification.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, proper
books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2025 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2025, from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting;

(9) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Reportin accordance with the requirements of Section
197(16) of the Act, as amended: in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section1970of the Act; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations givento us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements -Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements;

i.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

ii.  Referto Note No. 28 The entire deposit liability is covered under the scheme of arrangement, hence the transfer
of unclaimed deposit and remaining unpaid for a period of exceeding 7 years to Investor Education and
Protection fund, the question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv.  (a). The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the
note 35 (xiii) A to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b). The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the note 35 (xiii) B to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

52 MRACL 81St Annual Report 2024-25



Maha Rashtra Apex

=i Corporation Limited

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement

v.  The Company has not declared any Dividend and paid during the year hence compliance with Section 123 of the
Actnotapplicable.

vi.  Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Standalone
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors, except for the matters stated in paragraph 19(h)(vi) below in relation to audit trail as required
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

For H G Sarvaiya and Co.Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 115705W.

Prop. Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya
Membership No. 045038
UDIN: 25045038BMGPYL3295

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-05-2025
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date to the members of MAHA RASTRA APEX CORPORATION LIMITED on the standalone financial statements
as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025.

i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plantand Equipment;

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not
applicable.

(b)  The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and according to
the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification of Property, Plant and Equipment is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets.;

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee are held in the name of the Company,
except for the following properties as stated in Note 4 to the financial statements under investment property.:-

Dfegnphon Carrying value Title deed in the Property held Reason for not being held

of item (in INR) name of since in the name of company

of property which date

Land -at INR. 318.30 Mr. Vittal Pai 18.06.1961 Company has lease hold right

Chantaru of overthe property. Mutation record

Brahmavar is incompany name. Selling
freehold right of this land requires
Muliowner’s consent

Land -at INR.10,052.90 Mr. Joseph Lobo 21.06.1963 Property not transferred

Matapady due to non availability of

of Brahmavar originaldocuments

Building - Shop | INR. 22,30,432.00 | Mr. Antonio Joao 24.05.1995 Shop No. 9 still not

No.8&9- Fortunato Fernandes registereddue to misplace

Ground Floor of documentsat Sub

Commerce Registrar Office Margoa

House

Mirand Road,

Panaji-Goa

# Value of Rs. 22,30,432 for shop No 8 and 9 Title Deed of Shop No 8 is held in the name of company and Title deed of
ShopNo9 has been misplaced in sub registrar office and the company is planning to seek legal remedy.

*None of the Title Deed Holder is a Promoter director or relative/ of promoter/director or employee of promoter/director.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during the year, being
under cost model. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable.

a) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

i) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable.
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)

vi)

vil) a.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has notbeen
sanctioned any working capital from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the
year. Further, the Company has made investments in associate and granted interest free unsecured loans to others
(employees), in respect of which:

The Company has not granted any loans to subsidiaries and others (employees) during the year . The details of
outstanding balance as at Balance sheet during the year are as follows:

Particulars Loan (Rs. in Lakhs)
Balance outstanding as atbalance sheet date:

-Employees 0.49

-Demand Loan 726.55

-Other advances 4

In our opinion investment made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are in the ordinary course of business and in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company'’s interest.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, in respect of loans
granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

No loans granted by the Company which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, the Company has
not granted any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
transaction covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are
notapplicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company cannot carry on the NBFC
Business without prior approval From RBI as per the Scheme Sanctioned by Karnataka High Court and Certificate of
Registration Cancelled by RBI with effect from 13th June 2002. Subsequently the Company has neither accepted any
deposits nor the amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and all the deposits and Bonds are bound by
Karnataka High Court order hence unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) Not applicable. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not reported.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not specified maintenance of
cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, to the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereofwere outstanding
atthe year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except Disputed sales tax
amounting to Rs. 17.54 Lakhs for the assessment year 1995-96 and 1996-97 in Telangana pending for disposal before
sales tax appellate Tribunal.
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vii

xii)

xii)

Xiv)a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income TaxAct, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are
notapplicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has no loans or other
borrowings or interest payable to any lender during the year. In respect of Debenture interest accrued there on up to
31.03.2002, the company is in the process of repayment as per the scheme of compromise and arrangement
sanctioned by the Honourable High Court of Karnataka dated 8th October 2004.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government the authority, however
RBI has Cancelled Certificate of Registration from 13June 2002, hence company cannot carry on the NBFC Business
without prior approval from RBI as per the Scheme Sanctioned by the Karnataka High Court.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not have any term loans
outstanding during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its Subsidiaries, associates. The Company did not have any joint ventures
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies. The Company did not
have any joint ventures during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise moneys by way
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year hence the clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) with the Central Government, during the year and upto the
date of this report.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(xii)(a)to(c) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. However, in respect of advance received
from Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon limited) in absence of adequate evidence, we are unable to
comment upon related party transaction entered in respect of arm’s length price.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued ill date, for the period under audit.
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XV)

xvi)alb

XX)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the order are not applicable.

The Certificate of registration granted to the company as Non-Banking Financial company under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of IndiaAct 1934, has been cancelled by an order dated 13th June 2002.As per the Scheme approved by
Honourable Karnataka High court Company Cannot carry on NBFC Business prior approval from RBI.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does not have any
CICs. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) (d) of the order are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvii) of the order are not applicable.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xviii) of the
order are notapplicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

The Company has transferred the total CSR obligation amounting to Rs.5 Lakhsto Manipal Academy of Health
&Educationin compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

For H G Sarvaiya and Co. Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 115705W.

Prop. Hasmukh Bhai G Sarvaiya
Membership No. 045038
UDIN: 25045038BMGPYL3295

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-05-2025
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Annexure “B”

Independent Auditor's report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the companies act, 2013 (the
"Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of MAHA RASTRAAPEX CORPORATION
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31*March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
forthe yearended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the
ICAI") and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statementsincludes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of Management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
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are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31,2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For H G Sarvaiya and Co. Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 115705W.

Prop. Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya
Membership No. 045038
UDIN: 25045038BMGPYL3295

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-05-2025
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

T in lakhs
Particulars Note No. | 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
I
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 3 9.00 10.18
Investment property 4 216.39 128.65
Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates 5 50,360.80 49,870.39
Financial assets
Investments 5 47.86 38.09
Other Tax Assets 6 348.44 44470
Other non-current assets 7 10.89 90.1900
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 50,993.37 50,582.20
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 22.08 18.87
Other financial assets 9 1,772.41 1,559.17
Assets classified as held for sale 10 34.44 35.07
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,828.92 1,613.10
TOTAL ASSETS 52822.31 52195.31
11| EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 1 1,411.78 1,411.78
Other Equity 12 43,596.12 41,962.09
TOTAL EQUITY 45,007.90 43,373.87
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities 13 4,514.41 5,521.44
Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale 29 3,300.00 3,300.00
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,814.41 8,821.44
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 52,822.31 52,195.31
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For H G Sarvaiya & Co. Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
Chartered Accountants K B Shet
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115705W Aspi Ngrimgn Katgara Chairm:nty
Managing Director Din: 01451944
Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya Din: 06946494 _ _
Propriter Vidya Mananjay More
Membership Number: 045038 Jyothi VB Director
Director Din: 06904529
Place: Mumbai Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan Din:07133349
Date: 30-05-2025 Director J M Panday
ate: SL-05- Din- 03060429 Place: Bengaluru Company Secretary/CFO
' Date: 30-05-2025 Membership No: 4303
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

% in lakhs
Particulars Note No. 31-March-2025 |  31-March-2024
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 14 44,05 668.52
Other Income 15 617.25 193.53
TOTAL INCOME 661.30 862.05
EXPENSES:
Employee Benefits Expense 16 78.10 66.84
Depreciation and Amortisation 17 3.65 4.03
Other Expenses 18 99.64 109.14
TOTAL EXPENSES: 181.39 180.01
Profit before Exceptional and Tax 479.91 682.04
Exceptional ltems 19 1,101.14 237.58
Profit before Tax 1,581.05 919.62

Tax Expense:
Current Tax 411.91 150.27
Adjustment of Tax For Earlier Years - -
Deferred Tax - -
Total Tax Expense: 411.91 150.27

Profit for period from continuing operations
Profit for the year 1,169.14 769.35
Other Comprehensive Income 467.37 32,228.37
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,636.51 32,997.72
Earnings per Equity Share:
Basic (Rs.) 8.30 5.46
Diluted (Rs.) 8.30 5.46
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For H G Sarvaiya & Co. Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
Chartered Accountants K B Shet
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115705W Aspi Ngrimgn Katgara Chairm:nty
Managing Director Din: 01451944
Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya Din: 06946494
Propriter . Vidya Mananjay More
Membership Number: 045038 Jyothi VB Director
Director Din: 06904529
Din:07133349
Place: Mumbai Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan J M Panday
Date: 30-05-2025 D!re.ctor Place: Bengaluru Company Secretary/CFO
Din: 03060429 Date: 30-05-2025 Membership No: 4303
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X in lakhs

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Gain / Loss on Sale of Assets
Capital Reserver Transfer of Profit
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments)
Depreciation Expenses
Reversal of impairment loss Other financial assets
Reversal of provision on diminution in the values of investments
Interest Remission from Bonds/Deposits
Other Comprehensive Income
Income Tax Expenses Recognised during the year ( Net of Reversal)
Dividend

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes
Movements in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in other Current assets
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in Other Current financial liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in Provision

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of non-current investments
Purchase of current investments
Dividend
Interest received
Sales /(Purchase ) of Fixed Assets
Proceeds from Agreement to Sale Investment

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Interest Paid

Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with scheduled banks:

- In current accounts

- In deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months

1,581.05 919.62
0.11 -
-2.84 126.12
-0.19 -14.20
3.65 4.03
2.25 -22.77
458.38 2.88
-411.91 -150.27
-569.53 -0.06
1,056.47 865.35
79.30 -90.19
-213.24 -741.67
-1,007.03 -834.75
-0.23 4.39
-84.73 -796.87
96.26 -5.20
11.53 -802.07
-490.41
569.53 0.06
2.25 22.77
-90.33 4.26
0.64 760.73
-8.32 787.82
321 -14.33
18.87 33.20
22.08 18.87
0.39 0.42
8.37 1.1
13.00 7.00
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X in lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Stamps in hand 0.02 0.03
- Stock of Stationery on hand at cost 0.30 0.31
Total Cash and cash equivalents 22.08 18.87

Summary of significant accounting policies

2

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (notes) are an integral part of these

financial statements.
Notes::

1 Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing

activities.

2 The cash flow statement has been prepared under Indirect Method as per Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as under section

133 of Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date

For H G Sarvaiya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115705W

Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya
Propriter
Membership Number: 045038

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-05-2025 Director
Din: 03060429

Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan

Aspi Nariman Katgara
Managing Director
Din: 06946494

Jyothi VB
Director
Din:07133349

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited

K B Shetty
Chairman
Din: 01451944

Vidya Mananjay More
Director
Din: 06904529

J M Panday
Company Secretary/CFO
Membership No: 4303
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Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2025

1. Background

Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated on 26th
April 1943. The Company is engaged in the business of Hire Purchase and Leasing Business, Presently the company has
discontinued the operation and conentrated on recovery of Hire Purchase and Leasing Business. The registered office of the
company is located at 3rd Floor, front Wing North Block, Manipal Centre, Bangalore, Karnataka - 560001.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30.05.2025

Abbrivations
Indian Accounting Standards - ('IndAS’) Fair Value through Profitand Loss - (‘FVTPL’)
Other Comprehensive Income - (‘OCI’) Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income - (‘FVTOCI’)

2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are prepared
for Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited.

(a) Basis of Preparation
(i) Compliance withInd AS

The financial statement comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
- certain financial assets and liabilities thatis measured at fair value; and
- defined benefit plans plan assets measured at fair value
(b) Currentversus Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as currentwhenitis:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
-Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period .

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is currentwhen:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
(c) SegmentReporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM”) of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director and CEO of the Company.

(d) Foreign Currency Transactions
(i) Functional and presentation currency (IF any)
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(e)

(f)

(@

Items included in the financial statements of each of the company’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The standalone financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Hershey functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances (IF Aany)

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are recognised in the statement
of profitand loss of the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-end, are translated at the year-
end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

-Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assetin
its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the entity’s activities. The company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interestincome is recorded using the effective interest rate, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in ‘Other
income’in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Income tax
CurrentIncome tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
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temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in India. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the standalone financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a netbasis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Note: Company has accumulated loss as a matter of purdence company has not recognised Deferred tax during the financial
Year.

(h) Leases
Asalessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred as lessee are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary costincreases.

()  Impairment
Financial assets

Afinancial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A
financial assetis considered to be impaired, if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of non-financial assets other than inventories are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairmentloss is recognised, as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of
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assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels into cash generating units for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if noimpairmenthad been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term fixed deposits with an
original maturity of less than or equal to three months.

Inventories

Finished goods are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is
made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged and unserviceable stocks are suitably depreciated.

Cost of all inventories is determined based on weighted average cost method. Cost of raw material, packing material and
stores and spares comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax
authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their presentlocation and condition.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-process includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, an appropriate share of
fixed and variable production overheads, excise duty as applicable and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production
facilities. Valuation of work-in-progress is based on stage of completion or as certified by management.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets Recognition and measurement

Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at ‘Fair value through
profit or loss’, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets are classified, at
initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as ‘Financial assets measured at amortised cost'.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories :
- Financial assets atamortised cost
- Financial assets at fair value

Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost net of impairment, if the objective of the Company’s business model is to hold
the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through Statement of Profit or Loss.
Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as either ‘Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ or ‘Other
financial liabilities’.

(a) Financial liabilities are classified as ‘Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’, if they are held for trading or

ifthey are designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. These are measured initially at fair value
with subsequent changes recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Other financial liabilities, are initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
toinitial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
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liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement
of Profitand Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(m) Property, plantand equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition forits intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a basis on the Stright Line Value Method (‘SLV’) as per the useful life prescribed under Schedule Il
of the Companies Act 2013, which, in management’s opinion, reflect the estimates useful economic lives of fixed assets.

Capital work-in-progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready to use at the balance sheet date.

Advance paid for acquisition/construction of fixed assets which are not ready for theirintended use at each balance sheet date
are disclosed under long-term loans and advances as capital advances.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or
loss within other gains/(losses).

(n) Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at purchase cost. The cost of an item of intangible
fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies. After initial recognition, an
intangible asset s carried atits cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it
relates.

The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each financial year-end and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision,
the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life.

Anintangible assetis derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fromiits use and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of tangible/intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profitand loss.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as awhole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
oneitemincluded in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Ifitis no longer probable
thatan outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Adisclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are notrecognised or disclosed in the financial statements.
Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

As required by Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, the discount rate used to arrive at the PV of the defined benefit obligation is
based on the Indian government security yields prevailing as at the Balance Sheet date that have maturity date equivalent to
the tenure of the obligation.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Netinterestis calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profitand loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

- Netinterest expense orincome
Earnings per share

The Basic Earnings Per equity Share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. the average market value of the equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the
beginning of the period unless issued at a later date.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 7 in lakhs
Note No.3: Property, Plant and Equipment

Propee(;'ltﬁppr:‘aen:tand Property plant and equipment on lease
Office Motor Cars & Plant Total
Particulars Furniture Other & Motor | Gas ¢ e
& Equipments|  Vehicles Machinery | Vehicle Cylinder
COST
At1stApril 2023 18.74 0.63 530.03 5.1 3.20 9.37 567.08
Additions 0.63 - - - - - 0.63
Disposal - - - - - - -
Assets held for sale - - - - - - -
At 31st March 2024 19.37 0.63 530.03 5.11 3.20 9.37 567.71
Additions 0.79 0.79
Disposal -0.08 - -0.08
Assets held for sale -
At 31st March 2025 20.08 0.63 530.03 5.1 3.20 9.37 568.42
DEPRECIATION
At 1stApril 2023 7.04 0.50 530.03 5.11 3.20 9.37 555.25
Depreciation expense 2.22 0.06 2.28
Disposal -
Lease Terminal Adj. - -
At March 2024 9.26 0.56 530.03 5.1 3.20 9.37 557.53
Depreciation expense 1.86 0.03 1.89
Disposal - - -
At 31st March 2025 11.12 0.59 530.03 5.11 3.20 9.37 559.42
Net Block
At 31st March 2024 10.11 0.07 - - - - 10.18
At 31st March 2025 8.96 0.04 - - - - 9.00

No Revaluation of property, plantand equipment has been carried out during the year.

The company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding
any Benami property.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31-03-2025

Building - Shop No. 8 & 9 -Ground Floor Rs. 22,30,432.00
Commerce house, Mirand Raod,
Panaji-Goa

% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Investment Properties
Gross carrying amount
Opening balance 176.88 185.89
Addition 89.43 -
Disposal -9.01
Closing balance 266.31 176.88
Depreciation and impairment
Opening balance 48.23 50.59
Depreciation 1.69 1.75
49.92 52.34
Disposal 411
Closing balance 49.92 48.23
Net block 216.39 128.65
Description of item of property Carrying value  Title deed in Property held  reason for not being
in rupees the name of since which date held in the name of company
Land -at Chantaru of Brahmavar Rs. 318.30 Mr. Vittal Pai 18.06.1961 Company has lease hold
right over the property.
Mutation record is in
company name. Selling
freehold right of this
land requires Muli owner’s
consent
Land -at Matapady of Brahmavar Rs. 10,052.90 Mr. Joseph Lobo 21.06.1963 Property not transferred due

to non availability of original
documents and original
owner not traceable.

Mr. Antonio Joao 24.05.1995 Shop No. 9 still not registered

Fortunato due to misplace of documents
Fernandes in Sub Registrar Office
Margoa#

# Value of Rs. 22,30,432 for shop No 8 and 9 Title Deed of Shop No 8 is held in the name of company and Title deed of Shop
No 9 has been misplaced in sub registrar office and the company is planning to seek legal remedy
* None of the Title Deed Holder is a Promoter director or relative/ of promoter/director or employee of promoter/director.

Particulars

March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

5  Non Current Investments
Investments In Equity Instruments
Long term at cost
A Investment in Subsidiary and Associates
Investment in Associates
(Unquoted Equity Shares, Fair value through OCI)

Additional shares were alloted under right issue

5693020 Kanara Consumer Products Limited (formerly Kurlon Ltd.)
shares of Rs. 10/- each. 6013334 w.e.f from March 31st, 2025.

49,719.78 49,229.37
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Investment in Associates

(Unquoted Equity Shares, at cost)

895000 Manipal Home Finance Ltd. Shares of Rs. 10/- each 89.77 89.77

33990 Manipal Springs Ltd. Shares of Rs. 100/- each 34.16 34.16

Unquoted Equity Shares of Subsidiaries:

(Unquoted, at cost)

5025100 Maharashtra Apex Asset Managment Co. Ltd. shares of Rs. 10/- each 502.51 502.51

810000 Eldorado Investments Co. (P) Ltd. shares of Rs. 10/- each 85.63 85.63

1799950 Manipal Crimson Estates & Properties Pvt. Ltd. shares of Rs. 10/- each 180.30 180.30

Total 50,612.15 50,121.74

Less: Dimunition in the value of Investment 251.35 251.35

Total ::::: 50,360.80 49,870.39
B  Other Investments

Quoted Equity Shares : Long Term

(Fair value through Profit & Loss account)

16000 | C D S Ltd. shares of Rs. 10/- each 2.96 2.78

Unquoted Equity Shares Others

(Fair value through OCI)

3000 General Investment & Commercial Corporation Ltd. shares of Rs. 10/- each 6.22 3.83

2000 Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Ltd.shares of Rs. 25/- each 14.14 12.80

4000 MPL Enterprises Ltd. Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2.00 1.83

58436 Mangala Investments Ltd. Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1.50 1.50

36368 Manipal Rajmahal Hotels Ltd. Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2254 16.85

Sub Total 49.36 39.59

Less: Diminution In the value of Investment 1.50 1.50

TOTAL 47.86 38.09

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 2.96 2.78

Market value of quoted investments 6.86 5.99

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 44.90 35.32

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 252.85 252.85
6  Non Current Tax Assets

Advance Income-Tax and TDS - Net of Provision 348.44 44470

Total ::::: 348.44 444.70
7 Other Non Current Asset

Advance for purchase of property 3.95 86.69

Gratuity Asset 3.50

Less: diminution in value of Investment 6.94 -

Total ::::: 10.89 90.19
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Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with Banks
Deposits with maturity less than 6 months
Stamps in hand
Stock of Stationery on hand at cost

9  Other Financial Asset - Current
Demand Loans
Staff Demand Loan
Bills Discounted
Other Advance
Other Deposits
Deposits with High Court of Karnataka*
Interest accrued on Investments
Other Receivables.
Input Tax Credit on GST
Bank Deposit with Maturity Less than 12 months
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

0.39 0.42
8.37 1.1
13.00 7.00
0.02 0.03
0.30 0.31
22.08 18.87
726.55 736.40
0.49 0.54
64.59 77.59
4.00 4.56
6.17 12.95
*1395.75 1,395.75
2.03 4.42
34.52 45.30
492 4.47
351.87 132.77
-818.49 -8556.58
1,772.41 1,559.17

* Note: During the year 2023-24, the Company has kept deposit of Rs. 1395.75 lakhs in High Court of Karnataka as per Court

Order
Loans & advances to Promoters etc.

2024-2025

2023-2024

Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan

outstanding

Percentage to the
total loans and
advances in the
nature of loans
outstanding

Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the
total loans and
advances in the
nature of loans

Promoter- Mangala Investment Ltd. 60.89 5% 60.89 5%

Promoter - Efficient Management Services P Ltd. 173.14 13% 173.14 13%

Less: 100% provision for doubtful receivables 234.03 234.03 -
Net Impact - -

Director Nil Nil -

KMPs Nil Nil -

Note

The above loans made when the company was a NBFC and its certificate of registration cancelled by RBI on 13th June 2002, and

100% provision made in the books on above loans.
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Terms /rights attached to shares

proportion to their shareholding.

The equity shares have a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholders is eligible for one vote per each share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
except in the case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the company(after dustribution of all preferential amounts including payment to the preference shareholders) in

(iii) Details of shares inthe Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

% in lakhs

10 Assets classified as held for sale

Land and Building 32.40 32.40

Office Furniture & Equipments 2.01 2.64

Motor Cars & Other Vehicles 0.02 0.02
1 34.43 35.06
()  Authorised Capital:

3,00,00,000 March 31,2025 (April 01,2024 3,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each 3,000.00 3,000.00

1,00,00,000 March 31,2025 ( April 01,2024 1,00,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000.00 1,000.00

Total ::::: 4,000.00 4,000.00
(i) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital (Fully Paid-up):

1,40,91,896 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully Called-Up (March 31, 2024) 1,40,91,896,

Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully Called-Up (March 31,2025) 1,409.19 1,409.19

Less: Calls Unpaid: - -

Add: Forfeited Shares 2.59 259

Total ::::: 1,411.78 1,411.78

Equity Shares March 31,2025
M/s Manipal Holdings (P) Ltd 2,488,875 17.66%
Mrs Jaya S Pai 1,627,365 11.55%
M/s Chitrakala Inv. Trade & Business Fin. Ltd. 906,297 6.43%
M/s Metropolis Builders (P) Ltd. 1,890,150 13.41%

March 31,2024

2,488,875 17.66%
1,627,365 11.55%

906,297 6.43%
1,890,150 13.41%

(iv) Reconciliation of Number of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting periods

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Equity Shares No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 14,091,896 1,409.19 14,091,896 1,409.19
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 14,091,896 1,409.19 14,091,896 1,409.19

(v) Details of forfeited shares and amount originally paid - up

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

No. of Shares Amount

No. of Shares Amount

Equity Shares of ¥ 10 Each 58204 259

58,204 2.59
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Vi) Shares Holding Of Promoters
Promoter Name No of % of Total % Change during
Shares ** Shares ** the year ***
Manipal Metropolis Builders Pvt Ltd 1890150 13.41 0
Mangala Investments Limited 670000 4.75 0
Manipal Holdings Private Limited 2488875 17.66 0
General Investment And Commercial Corporation Ltd 38059 0.27 0
Chitrakala Investment Trade & Business Finance Ltd 906297 6.43 0
Efficient Management Services (p) Ltd. 400 0.00 0
Tonse Sudhakar Pai (Trustee Ananth Trust) 391198 2.78 0
Jaya S Pai 1627365 11.55 0
Tonse Sudhakar Pai (Trustee Trust Foundation) 393195 2.79 0
Sheela Pai 265184 1.88 0
Varada S Prabhu 562 0.00 0
T Satish U Pai 120 0.00 0
Manipal Home Finance Limited 141700 1.01 0
Total Shares Held By Promoters: 8813105 62.54
Total Shares Held By The Company 14091896
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
12 Other Equity

a.  Securities Premium

Atthe beginning of the year 998.14 998.14

Increase/(decrease) during the year - -

Atthe end of the year 998.14 998.14
b  Capital Reserve

Atthe beginning of the year 556.25 430.13

Increase/(decrease) during the year (Refer Note No. 39) -2.84 126.12

Atthe end of the year 553.41 556.25
¢  Capital Redemption Reserve

Atthe beginning of the year 176.35 176.35

Increase/(decrease) during the year

Atthe end of the year 176.35 176.35
d  Special Reserve - [Pursuantto RBI (Amendment) Act, 1997]

Atthe beginning of the year 159.52 159.52

Increase/(decrease) during the year

Atthe end of the year 159.52 159.52
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
e  OtherReserves
i General Reserve
Atthe beginning of the year 218.61 218.61
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
Atthe end of the year 218.61 218.61
ii  Retained Earnings
Atthe beginning of the year -1,672.64 -8,441.99
Profit/ (loss) for the year 1,169.14 769.35
Less: Appropriations - -
Total Retained Earnings -6,503.50 -7,672.64
Other Compransive Income
Balance as per Last balance Sheet 47,525.86 15,297.49
Transfer from Statement of Profitand Loss 467.73 32,228.37
Deduction During the year - -
Asatend of year 47,993.59 47,525.86
Total Other Reserves 41,708.70 40,071.83
Total Other Equity 43,596.12 41,962.09
13 Other Financial liabilities - Current
Secured
Unpaid Creditors being outstanding Bonds/Deposits with interest 1,761.04 1,778.40
Deposit/Bonds with interest less than Rs. 5000/- 48.00 48.60
Delayed period interest on deposit 1,225.32 1,236.64
(Secured by first charge on Co’s financial assets, book debts & receivables)
Unsecured
Amount due to Subsidiaries 115.53 116.01
Lease Security Deposits - 438.78
Inter Corporate Deposits - 561.81
Rent Security Deposit 33.04 19.86
TDS for Payments made 2023-2024 0.84 0.60
Liabilities for Expenses 23.70 1415
Other payables 0.34 0.33
Collection and other Accounts 1.61 1.27
Total :::: 3,209.42 4,216.45
13 (a) Redeemable Cumulative Preference share
316,200 14% Redeemable Cumulative Preference shares of Rs. 10/-each 31.62 31.62
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
14% Preference share 316,200 31.62 316,200 31.62
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Details of Preference shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Preference Shares March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
M/s General Investmant Commercial Corp Ind. 20,100 6.36% 20,100 6.36%
M/S Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (Kurlon Ltd.) 80,100 25.33% 80,100 25.33%
Mr T Sudhakar Pai 25,800 8.16% 25,800 8.16%

Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares shall be redeemable after expiry of 5 years from the date of allotment. The shares are
entitled for preferential right over dividend (before the equity share holders) at the rate 14% which is to be proposed by the Board of
Directors and subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. however the shares are Cumulative Preference
Share and therefore the Shareholders are entitled to carry forward the dividend of a year to the forth coming year/s in case the same is not
declared in a year. In the event of liquidation such shareholders are eligible to receive the face value along with cumulative dividend (after
distribution of all preferential amount) before the distribution of assets to the equity share holders. In case the assets are not sufficient to
cover up the face value, then the same will be distributed in proportion to their shareholding if the surplus available, after distribution of all
preferential amount.

Preference share capital is in the nature of finance as the preference share is non- convertible redeemable preference share, Hence As
Per Ind As 109 Preference share is classified as Financial Liability and disclosed separately in the face of Balance Sheet.

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

13(b) Advance received for sale of property

| 1,273.37 | 1,273.37

Note: Company entered in to an agreement to sell with Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon Limited) and Kurlon Enterprises
Ltd. for the sale of Non agricultural Land measuring 233 cents, including RCC Building with 3 Floors, total Built-up area about 17149 Sq. Ft
situated in 76,Badagubettu Village, Udupi at survey No 102 /16P2, 16P3,9,12 . As per the agreed terms Purchaser agreed to release the
funds out of the balance purchase price to the vendor as and when required for the payment of companies liabilities to the deposit holders.
This asset along with other assets is earmarked to secure the payment of deposit liabilities as mentioned in CP 30/2003. The sale and
registration of the same in favour of the purchaser is subject to auction bidding and Karnataka High Court Approval.

TOTAL - 13+13a+13b) 4,514.41 5,521.44
14 Revenue From Operations
Income from Hire Purchase, Lease, Loans & Advances 24.73 652.31
Lodging Business 19.32 16.21
Total ::::: 44.05 668.52
15 OtherIncome
Interest Income on
Bank Deposit (Net of Int. Recovered on Premature Withdrawal) 17.66 14.73
Others 0.06 0.09
Service Charges 5.06 7.96
Income from House Property 20.90 15.65
Dividend Income on long term Investments 569.53 0.06
Interest Remission from Bonds/Deposits 2.25 22.77
Profit/loss on Sale of Assets 0.11 -
Profit/loss on sale of property - 116.10
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 0.19 14.20
Miscellaneous Receipts 1.49 1.97
Total ::::: 617.25 193.53
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Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
15. a.Dividend Income amounting to Rs. 569.53 lakhs is received from the Associate
company Kanara Consumer Products Limited(*KCPL").
16 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 57.05 48.13
Retainership Fees 9.60 9.86
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 2.79 2.83
Gratuity Expenses 0.30 0.89
Staff Welfare Expenses 8.36 5.13
Total ::::: 78.10 66.84
17 Depreciation And Amortisation
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 3.65 4.03
Total ::::: 3.65 4.03
18 OtherExpenses
Fairvalue loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - -
Electricity Expenses 2.05 1.98
Rent 12.23 12.23
Rates & Taxes
Taxes and Licence 7.40 1.52
GSTPaid 0.66 3.38
Filing Fees 0.08 0.06
Insurance 0.28 0.21
Repairs and Maintenance
Buildings 451 3.45
Others
Other Repairs & Maintenance 3.81 2.01
Vehicle Maintenance 0.55 0.58
Computers and other Service Charges 1.80 1.58
CSR Expenditure ( Refer Note (a) below) 5.00
Advertisement Charges 1.77 7.98
Printing and Stationery 1.05 0.57
Postage and Telephones 0.82 0.78
Newspapers, Books & Periodicals 0.03 0.03
Ineligible ITCon GST 2.08 2.68
Interest On Delay Payment- GST 0.01
Travelling and Conveyance
Others 3.46 4.02
Legal and Professional fees 19.86 31.28
Consultancy & Other Advisory Services 18.31 20.86
Directors’ Sitting Fees 0.44 0.56
Paymentto Auditors as:
Statutory Audit Fees 2.00 2.00
Miscellaneous expenses 11.06 10.96
Bank Charges 0.05 0.42
Total ::::: 99.64 109.14
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Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
18. a.The details of Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) as prescribed under section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:
i.Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 5.00 NA
ii.Amount approved by the Board 5.00 NA
iii. Amount spent during the year on 5.00 NA
a) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
b) For purpose other than (a) above 5.00 NA
iv. Shortfall at the end of the year NA NA
v. Total of previous year shortfall NA NA
vi.Reason for shortfall NA NA
The Company has transfered the total CSR obligation amounting to Rs. 5 lakhs to the
Manipal Academy of Health and Education
19 Exceptional ltems

Exceptional Income:
Reversal of liability 1,000.59
Reversal of NPA Provision 37.09 174.29
Bad Debts Recovered 84.34 64.83

1,122.03 239.12
Exceptional Expenses:
Bad Debts Written off 20.89 1.54

20.89 1.54

Exceptional Expenses/ (Income) 1,101.14 237.58

The Bad Debt Recovered of Rs. 84.34 lakhs includes Rs. 33.90 lakhs received on sale of securities. The Company was engaged in the
business of share broking and advisory services prior to 2004. The said business incurred loss as clients defaulted. The Company had
huge balance of receivables which was written off as bad debts. During the year some of listed shares offered as security to the company
in the said business were sold and and proceeds were treated as bad debt recovery. ** The dividends of Rs. 1.49 lakhs on the shares
given as security under the said business is included under miscellaneous receipts and grouped under other income.

Exceptional income includes an amount of Rs.1,000.50 lakhs pertaining to unsecured lease deposits and inter-corporate deposit (ICD)
liabilities, which are no longer payable and have been reversed and tax provision made

20 Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity
shares outstanding during the period/year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of
allthe dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs. Per Share) 10.00 10.00
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 14,091,896 14,091,896
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of period 14,091,896 14,091,896
Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of period 14,091,896 14,091,896
Profit / (Loss) for the period(Rs.) 1,169.14 769.35
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share not annualized (Rs.) 8.30 5.46
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Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

21 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
There are no Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the
Company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been
made. The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties has been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

22 FairValues
The carrying values of financials instruments of the Company are reasonable and approximations of fair values.

Particulars Carrying amount FairValue
March31,2025  March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans - - - -
Other Financial Assets 1,772.41 1,559.17 1,772.41 1,559.17
Assets classified as held for sale 34.43 35.06 3443 35.06
Cash and cash equivalents 22.08 18.87 22.08 18.87
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 1,828.92 1,613.10 1,828.92 1,613.10
Financial assets measured at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss

Investments (quoted) 2.96 2.78 6.86 5.99
Investments (unquoted)* 44.90 35.32 44.90 35.32
Financial assets measured at fair value

through statement of Profit & Loss 47.86 38.10 51.76 41.31

* Does not Include Investment in Subsidiary and Associates
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Borrowings

Other financial liabilities 4,514.41 5,521.44 4,514.41 5,521.44
Total Financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost 4,514.41 5,521.44 4,514.41 5,521.44

The Management assessed that carrying amount of Loans, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Borrowings, Trade Payables and Other
Financial Assetsé& Liabilities are reasonable estimates of their Fair Value.
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Fair Value Hirerachy
The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis :

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting period/year

. As on usin
Particulars March 31, 2025 :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss
Investments (quoted) | 2.96 2.96
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
Investments (unquoted) 44.90 - - 4490
Total :::: 47.86 2.96 - 44.90

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting period/year
As on using

Particulars March 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss
Investments (quoted) | 278 - - 278
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
Investments (unquoted) 35.31 - 35.31
Total :::: 38.09 - - 38.09
. Ason Ason
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Loans -

Other Financial Assets 1,772.41 1,559.17

Assets classified as held for sale 3443 35.06

Cash and Cash Equivalents 22.08 18.87

Total Financial Assets 1,828.92 1,613.10

Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost

Borrowings 4,514.41 5,521.44

Other financial liabilities -

Liabilities directly Associated with Assets Held for Sale 3,300.00 3,300.00

Total Financial Liabilities 7,814.41 8,821.44

The Fair Value of the above financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortized cost which is considered to be approximate to their fair
values.Therefore nd AS 113 fair value hierarchy is not applicable.

During the year, quoted investments classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy were transferred to Level 1. This transfer occurred
because active market quotations for these shares became available during the reporting period.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial
guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to
supportits operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTOCI investments and enters into derivative transactions. The
Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these
risks. The Company’s senior management of the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures
and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative
activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It
is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below

a. Financial risk management

The Company has a Risk Management Policy established by its Board of Directors for overseeing the Risk Management Framework and
developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The risk management policies are established to ensure timely
identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks, monitor the
risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

The risk management policies aims to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments:
- MarketRisk

- Credit Risk

- Liquidity Risk

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices.
The Company is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to changes in Market Prices and Interest rates.

The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using Diversified Investment. The Company has the policy approved by the
Board of Directors, which provide written Principles on Price Risk, Interest rate risk, credit Risk. Compliance with policies and exposure
limitsis reviewed by the Management on continuous basis.

Price Risk:

The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from Investment held in Quoted equity Investment classified in the Balance Sheet at
Fair Value through Profit and Loss and Unquoted Investment are Classified in the Balance sheet at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income. Profit/ Loss for the year would increase/ Decrease as a result of gain/Losses on these Quoted Securities
classified at fair Value throgh Profit or Loss and in the case of ungoted Investment gain/ losses are passed through Other Comprehensive
Income.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. How ever Company’s Debt Instrument s Not Material.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk
encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company
has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Company'’s credit risk arises principally from the trade receivables, loans, cash & cash equivalents and financial guarantees.
Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risks from balances with banks and financial institutions are managed in accordance with the Company policy. the Company
attempts to limit the credit risk by only dealing with reputable banks.

The Carrying Value of the Financiall Assets to approximate its fair values. The above financial assets are not impaired as at the reporting
date.
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Liquidity risk Management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation

where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing.

The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining reserve borrowing
facilities on Sale of Property and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of

financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its nonderivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods and its non-derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

% in lakhs
Liquidity exposure as at 31 March 2025
Particulars <1 Year 1-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Financial Asset
Other non-current assets - 47.86 47.86
Current Investments - -
Cash and cash equivalents 22.08 22.08
Other financial assets 1,772.41 1,772.41
Assets classified as held for sale* 34.43 34.43
Total 1,828.92 47.86 1,876.78
Financial Liability
Other Financial Liabilities 4,514.41 4,514.41
Liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale* 3,300.00 3,300.00
7,814.41 7,814.41
* Sale Deed Yet to Be executed only after Approval of Karnataka High Court Refer to Note No 31 Below
Liquidity exposure as at 31 March 2024
Particulars <1 Year 1-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Financial Asset
Other non-current assets - 38.09 - 38.09
Current Investments - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 18.87 - 18.87
Other financial assets 1,559.17 - 1,559.17
Assets classified as held for sale* 35.06 - - 35.06
Total 1,613.10 38.09 1,651.19
Financial Liability
Other Financial Liabilities 5,521.44 - 5,521.44
Liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale 3,300.00 - 3,300.00
Total 8,821.44 - 8,821.44

* Asset Value shown at Book Value at the time of First time adoption of Financial Statement.
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Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise

the shareholder value.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or

issue new shares.

23 Related Parties Disclosure as per Ind AS 24
a. List of Related parties and Relationship

T in lakhs

Relationship

Related Parties

Directors are interested:

Polo Queen Industrial Fintech Ltd

Sirar Dhotre Solar (P) Ltd.

Sirar Solar Energies (P) Ltd.

Sew Facility Management (P) Ltd.

Pay Smart Investment (P) Ltd.

Sevalal Solar (P) Ltd.

8 Strategies Equity Managers Pvt. Ltd.
Maharashtra Apex Asset Management Co. Ltd.
Manipal Crimson Estate & Properties (P) Ltd.
Eldorado Investments Company (P) Ltd.
Acqua Business Consulting & Trading (P) Ltd.
Alpasara Finvest Care Advisory Private Limited.

Key Management Personnel

Mr. K.B.Shetty-Chairperson & Non-Executive Director
Mr. Aspi Nariman Katgara-Managing Director

Mr. Nagrajan Shivramani-Non-Executuve Director

Mr. Yazdin Mistry-Non-Executive Director

Mr .J M Panday-CFO & CS

Relative of Director & KMP Mr. Jahangir Jamshed Panday-(Relative of KMP)
Ms. Feroza Jamshed Panday- (Relative of KMP)

Subsidiary Maharashtra Apex Asset Management Co. Ltd.
Manipal Crimson Estates & Properties Pvt. Ltd.
El'Dorado Investments Co. Pvt. Ltd.

Associate Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (KCPL)

Manipal Home Finance Ltd.
Manipal Springs Ltd.

Related Party Transactions Details

1. Loans and Advance given and Recovered : % in lakhs
Transaction Value Outstanding Value
Name of the party
March 2025 March 2024 | March 2025 March 2024
Maharashtra Apex Asset Management Co. Ltd., 047 0.47 (116.01) (116.48)
Manipal Springs Ltd., 13 8 473.47 486.47
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% in lakhs
2. Advance Received for Purchase of Property
Transaction Value Outstanding Balance
Name of the party March 2025  March2024 | March 2025 March 2024
Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (Kurlon Ltd.) - 3,300.00 3,300.00
Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (Kurlon Ltd.) - 1,273.37 1,273.37
3. Remuneration to Managing Director
Transaction Value Outstanding Value
Name of the party March 2025 March 2024 March 2025 March 2024
Sri Aspi Nariman Katgara 10.75 10.75 1.75 1.75
In accordance with the provision of Schedule - V of companies act 2013.
4, Remuneration to CFO
Transaction Value Outstanding Value
Name of the party
March 2025 March 2024 | March 2025 March 2024
Sri J M Panday 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07

5. Dividend Income

Name of the party

March 2025

Transaction Value

March 2024

March 2025

Outstanding Value
March 2024

Kanara Consumer Products Private Limited

569.3

24 Emplyee benefits as per Ind As 19 “Employee benefits”

(a)  Defined contribution plans:

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and other
funds. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

Retirement benefitin the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions are due. The company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund

(b)  Defined benefit plan:

The Company operates a gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary (includes
dearness allowance) last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service, or
retirement, or death, whichever is earlier. The benefits vests after five years of continuous service. Gratuity benefits are
valued in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
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% in lakhs
(i) Net benefit expense recognised in profit or loss
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 0.67 0.74
Interest expense -0.37 0.14
Total amount recognized in profit or loss 0.30 0.88
(ii) Other Comprehensive Income for the current period
Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to Demographic Assumption changes - -
(Gain)/loss from changes in financial assumptions 0.32 0.10
Experience (gain)/loss for plan liabilities 0.15 -4.19
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income -0.24 -0.22
Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 0.23 -4.31
(iiii) Reconcilation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligaton:
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 23.80 25.29
Current service cost 0.67 0.74
Interest expense 1.36 1.86
Total amount recognized in profit or loss 25.82 27.89
Re-measurements
(Gain)/loss from changes in financial assumptions 0.32 0.10
Experience (gain)/loss for plan liabilities 0.15 -4.19
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income 0.47 -4.09
Benefits paid -6.98 0.00
Present value of obligation as at the end 19.31 23.80
(iv) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 27.30 21.40
Interest Income 1.73 1.72
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in interest income 0.00 0.00
Contributions by employer 3.96 3.96
Benefits paid -6.98 0.00
Fair value of plan assets at the end 26.01 27.08
Less: Acturial Gain / (Loss) 0.23 0.22
Fair value of plan assets at the end excluding interest 26.24 27.30
Net defined benefit liability
Present value of funded obligations 19.31 23.80
Fair value of plan assets 26.24 27.30
Net defined benefit liability 6.93 -3.50
v) Bifurcation of liability as per schedule Il
Current Liability 6.93 3.50
Non-Current Liability
6.93 3.50
(vi) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
Discount rate 6.69% 7.19%
Expected return on assets 7.19% 7.36%
Salary Escalation 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement age 60 60
Attrition Rate 5% 5%
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, is based on inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

(vii) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptionsiis:

Discountrate (1% increase)
Discountrate (1% decrease)

Future salary growth (1% increase)
Future salary growth (1% decrease)
Attritionrate (1% increase)
Attritionrate (1% decrease)

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

18.71 23.19
19.96 24.45
19.95 24.46
18.72 23.18
19.29 23.80
19.32 23.79

The sensitivity analysis above have been determine based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, whileholding all other assumptions constant.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, is based on inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demandin the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the

period over which the obligation is to be settled.

25. Financial Ratios
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Variance (%) | Reason for variance
1. Current Ratio , )
CurrentAssets / Current Liabilities excluding Due to increase in
current maturities of Long-Term Borrowings) 0.23 0.18 30.03% current assets
2. DebtEquity Ratio
Total Debt/ Shareholders Equity NotApplicable | NotApplicable
3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Earnings before Interest, Depreciation and
Tax/Interest + Principal NotApplicable | NotApplicable
4. ReturnonEquity Due to increase in
Net Profits after taxes - Preference Dividend revenue from
(ifany) /Average Shareholder’s Equity 8.30% 5.46% 51.95% operations
5. Inventory turnoverratio
Costof goods sold OR sales /Average Inventory | NotApplicable | NotApplicable
6. Tradereceivables turnoverratio
Net Credit Sales /Average Accounts Receivable | NotApplicable | NotApplicable
7. Trade payables turnoverratio
Net Credit Purchases /Average Trade Payables | NotApplicable | NotApplicable
8. NetCapital Turnover Ratio
Operating Revenue / Working Capital Due to decrease
(CurrentAsset - Current Liabilities) -0.007% -0.093% -0.92% | incurrent laibilities
9. NetProfit Ratio Decrease in other
Net ProfitAfter Tax (After Exceptional ltem) income compared
Value of Operating Revenue 26.54% 1.15% 2206.18% to previous year
10. Return on Capital Employed Decrease in fair value
EBIT/Average Capital Employed 0.036% 0.044% -18.69% | gainin financial instruments
quoted shares
11. Return onInvestment Sale of auoed investment
f PR : ale of quotea Investments
Increa;,e in dividend received from the also deirease in dividend
Associate Generated From Investment/ received from the Assoicate
Average Investment 0.012% 0.005% 140.00%
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26

27

28

29

30

31

32

Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement:

The salient features of the scheme of Compromise and Arrangement sanctioned by the High Court of Karnataka under sections
391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 vide its Order dated 8th October, 2004 and filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Karnataka on 15th December 2004 with its effective date is as under:

a) No interest shall accrue or be payable on the bonds/deposits maturing on or after 1st April, 2002 and remaining
unpaid/outstanding ason 31.3.2002

b)  Bonds/deposits matured prior to 31st March, 2002 and remaining unclaimed shall be repaid with interest upto the date
of maturityand Bonds/deposits accepted/renewed in between 1st April, 2002 and 15th  April, 2002 shall be repaid
withoutany interest, on receipt of the claim from the holders thereof.

c) Any loans/advances granted to any bond/deposit holders shall be set off/adjusted against the deposits/ bonds and the
outstanding debts payable by the Company shall be reduced accordingly.

d)  Alldeposits and bonds of the face value of ' 5,000/- and less shall be paid within six months fromthe date of orderin one
installment with interest accrued upto 31st March, 2002

e)  Deposits/ bondholders receiving interest at monthly/quarterly rests shall be paid the face value in 20 equal quarterly
installments.

f)  Outstanding deposits/bonds other than those stated in para d & e above shall be paid as follows:
i) 15% oftheface value on or before the expiry of 6th month of the Effective date

i) 20% ofthe face value on or before the expiry of the 18th month of the Effective date

i) 25% ofthe face value on or before the expiry of the 30th month of the Effective date

iv)  20% ofthe face value on or before the expiry of the 42nd month of the Effective date

v)  Balance 20% ofthe face value and interest payable upto 31stMarch 2002 on or before the expiry ofthe 54thmonth of
the Effective date against the surrender of the bond/deposit certificates.

g)  Fordelayin paymentofinstallments interest shall be paid @ 6% p.a.

i) The Company shall not carry on the business as a non-banking financial company without the prior permission of the
RBI.

Allthe Installments as per the scheme in respect of Note 26 (€) and Note 26 (f) have fallen due on 15th Sept., 2009 and 15th June,
2009 respectively. The shortfall in repayment as per the scheme up-to 31st March, 2025 amounts to Rs.3034.36 Lakhs, (Up to
Previous year Rs. 3063.64 lakhs). The Company has deposited Rs,. 1396 Lakhs with Honble High Court of Karnataka towards
repayment. The Company has issued public notice to deposit/bond holders to surrender their certificates and collect the balance
dues.

There are no deposits matured and remaining unpaid for a period of 7 years during the year ended 31.03.2025. The transfer of
unclaimed matured deposits to Investor Protection Fund does not arise in view of the entire deposit liability being covered under
the scheme of arrangement.

The Property at Jai Bharath Industrial Estate, Jalahalli Camp Road, Yashvanthpur Bangalore was auctioned by the Karnataka
High court on 20/04/2012. M/s K C P Ltd. (Kurlon Ltd.) was the highest bidder. The bid amount of Rs. 3300.00 lakhs is received in
full. Registration is pending. The company is waiting for the auction bidder Kanara Consumer Product Limited to initiate the
registration process.

The Company has prepared the accounts on going concern basis as the management is of the view thatthe company will be
ableto recover the dues frommostof the borrowers/ debtors and monitor effectively the deficitin operations.

For Investment In 50000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each in M/s Eldorado Investment Company. Pvt. Ltd., Which is a subsidiary and
Consideration amounting to Rs. 9,50,000/- Still Pending for transfer in the name of the company.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments -as lessor

The Company has entered into leases on its property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the
terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available
data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the
Company.

Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Currentincome tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to the taxes on income levied by same
governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company
has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

Ateach balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred tax
assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised or virtually certain as the case may be.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT, during the period that MAT is permitted to be set off under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (specified period). In the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in
accordance with the recommendations contained in the guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI), the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the
extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the
specified year.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.Due to the complexities involved
in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only atinterval in response
to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates

Further details about gratuity obligations are givenin Note No.24
33 Contingent Liabilities

a) No provision is made in the books for the disputed Sales tax liability amounting to Rs.17.54 lakhs for the Assessment years
1995-96 to 1996-97 as the appeals filed by the company are pending disposal.

b) No Provision is made for Arrears of Cumulative Fixed Dividend from 31.03.2001 to maturity date for redemption amounting to
Rs.17.14lakhs.

34 Preference Share notredeemed

Cumulative Preference Shares amounting to Rs. 31.62 lakhs are not redeemed and no redemption reserve is created as the
Company is incurring losses since 2001 and has accumulated losses and no redemption reserve is created

35 OtherRegulatory Information

(i)The company holds all the title deeds of immovable property in its name except Disclosed in Note Number 4 Under Investment
Properties.

(ii) During the year, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipments (including Right of Use Asset).
(iii) During the year Company has not revalued its intangible Property, Plant & Equipments (including Right of Use Asset)
(iv) Company do not have any Intangible asset

(v)During the year, the Company has not given any loans to the Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the Related Parties either
severally or jointly, with any other person, however Loans advanced in earlier years balance outstanding for which 100%
Provision Made on those balances are Disclosed under Note No: 9

(vi) There are No Capital Work in Progress
(vii) There are No Intangible Asset under Development.

(viii) The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any Benami property.

(ix) Company has notavailed any loan from the Bank or any other financial institution.

(x) The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender , However RBI has cancelled
Certificate of Registation to operate as a NBFC with effect from 13th June 2002.

(xi) The company does not have any charges or satisfaction thereof, which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

(xii) Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Karnatka High Court as disclosed in Note No.26.

(xiii)(A) During the year company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) (B) During the year company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shalll:
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(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(xiv) The company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
asincome during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

(xv) The company has not traded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.
DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES

The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24.

Audit Trail

The proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules
2021 requires companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts, to use only such accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of accounts along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software. Further,
where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, the audit trail feature has not been tampered with.

Events after the reporting period

There are no other subsequent events that occurred after the reporting date .

Previous year comparatives

The Previous figures have been reclassified to conform to current year’s Ind AS presentation requirements.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For H G Sarvaiya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115705W

Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya
Propriter
Membership Number: 045038

Place: Mumbai
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Din: 03060429
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Aspi Nariman Katgara
Managing Director
Din: 06946494
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Director
Din:07133349
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Date: 30-05-2025
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Vidya Mananjay More
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Din: 06904529

J M Panday
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial result of MAHARASTRAAPEX CORPORATION LIMITED(“the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associates, which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Consolidated statement of changes in equity and the Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies “the
consolidated financial statements”

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates as at 31 March 2024, of consolidated profit, consolidated total
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a. Wedraw attention to standalone financial statement which indicate that

The Company has not provided for delayed period interest cost on deposit amountingto  Rs. 48.14 lakhs for the year
ending 31st March 2025 and Rs. 12.01 lakhs for the quarter ending 31st March 2025, cumulative impact of interest cost
not provided from October 2019 to March, 2025 is Rs. 333.75 lakhs. To that extent profit is overstated and liability is
understated.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Revenue Recognition- Divided Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to, the
following:

Refer Note No. 22.a. to the Consolidated Financial o Assessed the appropriateness of the Group's revenue

Statement recognition accounting policies, including those relating to

discounts and rebates in accordance with IndAS 115;

o Evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
the Group’s key internal controls, including general and
specific information technology controls, exercised
implemented by the management for measurement and
recording of dividend amount;

The other income of the Group includes receipt by
the holding company, Dividend amount of Rs.
569.53 Lakhs from Associate Company Kanara
Consumer Products Limited (‘KCPL”).
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Revenue Recognition-Exceptional Income Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to, the
Refer Note No.27.ato the Consolidated Financial | following:
Statement e Obtained an understanding of the process followed by the

The Exceptional income of the Holding Company management for identification and reversal of such liabilities;

amount of Rs.1,000.50 lakhs pertaining to unsecured | e Evaluated the appropriateness of the accounting treatment

lease deposits and inter-corporate deposit (ICD) adopted by the Company in accordance with the applicable

liabilities, which are no longer payable have been accounting standards;

reversed during the year against which the tax has | o yigrified the underlying documentation including

been paid. correspondence, confirmations, legal opinions (if any), Board
approvals and other relevant records supporting the
management’s assertion that the liabilities are no longer
payable;

o Assessed the basis of management's judgement in
determining that the obligations have ceased and ensured that
such conclusions are reasonable and consistent with available
evidence;

o Verified the computation of exceptional income recognised in
the books of account;

e Checked the tax computation to confirm that appropriate taxes
have been paid on the said exceptional income;

o Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in the financial
statements with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Stand alone financial statement of Holding Company which includes following matters:

a) As per the scheme sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka vide order dated 8th October 2004, all
deposits/bonds were required to be repaid by 15th June 2009 / 15th September 2009. The total principal and accrued
interest payable to the public, outstanding as on date, amounts to Rs. 1,370.06 lakhs. During the financial year 2023-24,
the Company deposited Rs. 1,395.75 lakhs with the Hon’ble Court.

b) RBI has cancelled the Certificate of Registration granted to the Company to act as Non-Banking Financial Company by
order Dated 13th June 2002.

c) Company entered in to agreement for Sale of property with M/s Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon Limited).
Total Amount credited up to 31-03-2025 is 1273.37 lakhs. Time stipulated in the agreement has lapsed.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of (a) to (c) of above paragraph
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
report thereon The Holding Company’s Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, compare
with the financial statements of subsidiaries and associates audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities
and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to subsidiaries and associates, is traced from their financial
statements audited by the other auditors.
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When we read the Holding Company’s Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws
and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in term of the requirements of the Act, that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associates for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of
its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends
toliquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statementsas a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing,
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

o  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board of Directors;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;
and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the
Statement represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business activities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For entities or business
activities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the branch auditors or other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
onourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
sowould reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter
The accompanying Statementincludes the audited financial statements and other financial information, in respect of:

a. Three subsidiaries whose financial results reflects share of total assets of Rs. 958.53/- lakhs and total revenues of Rs.
129.80 lakhs and share of total profit of Rs.29.33 lakhs for the quarter and the year ended 31st March 2025 and the net
cash flow of Rs. 299.67 lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2025 which have been audited by their respective
independent auditors.

b.  The Holding Company’s investment of 50,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each in M/s Eldorado Investments Company (P)
Ltd., a subsidiary company physical Shares were not available for verification.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. There are qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies(Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO)
reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements, the details of which are given below:

S. | Name CIN Relation | Clause number of
No. the CARO report which

is qualified or adverse

1 |Maha Rastra L85110KA1943PLC001177 | Holding i(c), vii(b), ix (a) (xiii)
Apex Corporation Company
Limited

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the branch auditors and other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, associates, as noted in the ‘Other
Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
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(a)
(b)

(ii)
(i)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, In our opinion, proper
books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been
keptsofar as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
arein agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its
subsidiaries, associates incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associates incorporated in
India is disqualified as on 31 March 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Company,
subsidiary companies, associate companies to whom internal controls over financial reporting is applicable. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial
reporting of those companies, for the reasons stated therein.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 1970f the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, associates as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of
the Group; its associates Refer Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group, its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

The entire deposit liability is covered under the scheme of arrangement hence the transfer of unclaimed deposit and
remaining unpaid for a period of exceeding 7 years to Investor Education and Protection fund, the question of delay in
transferring such sum does not arise.

a). The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the other
auditors of such subsidiaries, associates that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note
41(xiii) A to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any such subsidiaries, associates or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associates (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b). The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and the other
auditors of such subsidiaries, associates that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in note
41(xiii) B to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associates
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, associates shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
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invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c). Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances
performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries, associates which are companies incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that
has caused us or other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material misstatement.

(d). The holding company, its subsidiaries and two associates have not declared any dividend for the FY 23-24.0ne
associate, M/s Kanara Consumer products Ltd has declared dividend for FY 23-24, and hence company had
receiveddividend in FY 24-25. All dividend were declared in compliance with Section 125 of Companies Act, 2013.The
board of directors of holding company, its subsidiaries and two associates have not proposed dividend for FY 24-25. One
associate, M/s Kanara Consumer products Ltd has proposed dividend for FY 24-25 subject to approval of shareholders
where provisions of Sec 123 of Companies Act are applicable.

j- Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors,
except for the matters stated in paragraph 19(h)(vi) below in relation to audit trail as required under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

For H G Sarvaiya and Co.Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 115705W.

Prop. Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya
Membership No. 045038

UDIN: 25045038BMGPYM6247
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-05-2025
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ANNEXURE “A”

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we
have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of MAHARASTRAAPEX CORPORATION LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries, its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary
companies, its associate companies, , based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors of the subsidiary companies,
associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting of the Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these consolidated IND AS Financial
Statement.

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany’s internal financial control
overfinancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statement.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion orimproper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
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evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Opinion In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Company,
its subsidiary companies, its associate companies which are companies incorporated in India, have in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Other Matters Our aforesaid
report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting in so far as it relates to 3 subsidiary companies, 3 associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based
solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Ouropinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For H G Sarvaiya and Co. Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 115705W.

Prop. Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya
Membership No. 045038

UDIN: 25045038BMGPYM6247
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-05-2025
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON - 31.03.2025

T in lakhs
Particulars Note No. March 312025 | March 31, 2024
I

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plantand equipment 4 9.00 10.18
Investment Property 6 354.40 266.66
Other Intangible assets 5 0.01 0.01
InvestmentinAssociates 7 50,624.90 49,825.39
Financial assets
Investments 7 636.32 608.91
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 8 13.00 255.50
Other TaxAssets 9 395.51 491.25
Other non-current assets 10 148.27 227.57
Total non-current assets 52,181.40 51,685.47
Current assets
Financial assets
Tradereceivables 1 - 21.01
Cashand cash equivalents 12 321.75 771.77
Otherfinancial assets 13 1,773.80 1,559.97
Other currentassets 14 0.45 0.64
Assets classified as held for sale 34.43 35.06
Total current assets 2,130.43 1,694.45
Total Assets 54,311.85 53379.84
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity

11| Equity Share Capital 15 1,411.78 1,411.78
Other Equity 16 45,171.90 43,181.80
Equity attributable to equityholders of the parent 46,583.68 44,593.58
Non Controlling Interest 1.01 1.01
Total equity 46,584.69 44,594.59
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 - 18.04
Total non-current Liabilities - 18.04
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 18 7.18 28.51
Otherfinancial liabilities 19 4.417.73 5,431.30
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON - 31.03.2025

% in lakhs

Particulars Note No. | March 312025 | March 31,2024
Other current liabilities 20 2.85 7.50
Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale 36 3,300.00 3,300.00
Total Current Liabilities 7,727.16 8,785.35
Total liabilities 7,7127.16 8,785.35
Total equity and liabilities 54,311.85 53379.94

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For H G Sarvaiya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115705W

Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya
Propriter
Membership Number: 045038

Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan
Director
Din: 03060429

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30-05-2025

Aspi Nariman Katgara

Managing Director
Din: 06946494

Jyothi VB
Director
Din:07133349

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30-05-2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited

K B Shetty
Chairman
Din: 01451944

Vidya Mananjay More
Director
Din: 06904529

J M Panday
Company Secretary/CFO
Membership No: 4303
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
% in lakhs
Particulars Note No. | 31-March-2025 | 31-March-2024

Income
Revenue from Operations 21 136.09 871.39
Other Income 22 655.01 211.92
Total Income 791.10 1,083.31
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expenses 23 145.61 235.39
Finance Cost 24 0.02 1.46
Depreciation and Amortisation 25 3.65 4.04
Other Expenses 26 135.50 154.00
Total Expense 284.78 394.89
Profit/(loss) before Share of Profit / (Loss) of associates Exceptional ltems 506.32 688.42
Share of Profit / (loss) of associates 32,373.60 -4,702.48
Profit/(loss) before Exceptional Item and Tax 32,879.92 -4,014.06
Exceptional ltems 27 1,106.71 119.53
Profit/(loss) before Tax 33,986.63 -3,894.53
Tax Expense

Current Tax 414.76 153.64

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods -1.37 0.01

MAT Credit Entitlement 1.16 -2.06

Deferred Tax - -
Total tax expense 414.55 151.59
Profit/(loss) for the year 33,572.08 -4,046.12

33,572.08 -4,046.12

Other comprehensive income:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) 26.99 22.56
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax 26.99 22.56
Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to

Equity holders of the parent 1,965.96 33,149.94

Non-controlling interest - -
Other comprehensive income for the year Attributable to

Equity holders of the parent 26.99 22.56

Non-controlling interest - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year Attributable to

Equity holders of the Parent 1,992.95 33,172.50
Non-controlling interests - -
Earnings per share
Basic computed on the basis of profit/(loss) for the year 13.95 235.24
Diluted computed on the basis of profit/(loss) for the year 13.95 235.24

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date Aspi Nariman Katgara

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited

For H G Sarvaiya & Co. Managing Director K B Shett N .
Chartered Accountants Din: 06946494 Chairmaen ¥ gi“:g;r:rjan Sivaramakrishnan
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115705W . Din: 01451944 Din: 03060429

Hasmukhbhai G Sarvaiya JDV:)'C':['):/ B

Propriter ! Vidya Mananjay More

Membership Number: 045038 Din:07133349 Dire)::tor 12y J M Panday

Place: Mumbai Din: 06904529 Company Secretary/CFO

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 30-05-2025 Date: 30-05-2025

Membership No: 4303
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Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 % in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,380.50 33,301.53
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows - -
Share of (Profit) / loss of Associates (767.48) (32,373.60)
Gain on Disposal of property,plants and equipment 0.1 (116.10)
Financial (Income) / Loss ( incl.fair value changes in financial instruments) - -
Other comprehensive income - 22.56
Inventories Written off - -
Increase in Cpital reserve (2.84) 126.11
Depreciation of Fixed Assets and Investment of properties 3.65 4.04
Interest Remission from Bonds/Deposits - -
Income Tax Expenses ( Net of Reversal) (414.55) (151.59)
Interest Remission from Bonds/Deposits (2.25) 153.45
Dividend Income (569.53) (0.06)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 627.62 966.34
Movements in working capital: - -
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non-current Assets 79.31 (90.19)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets 0.19 0.25
Decrease / (Increase) in trade and other receivables and prepayments 21.01 (7.53)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (21.33) 0.82
Increase / (Decrease) in financial liabilities (4.65) 1.86
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (1,014.17) (834.35)
Increase / (Decrease) in Financial Assets (213.82) (918.02)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions - -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (525.85) (880.82)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 95.74 (5.56)

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) (430.11) (886.37)

B. Cash flows from investing activities - -
Proceed from sale / (Purchase) of Property,plant and equipment (90.33) 4.27
Proceed from sales / (Purchase) of Financial Instruments - -
Proceed from Loan given
Proceed from maturity / (purchase) of fixed deposits

Interest received ( Finance Income ) 2.25 22.77
Proceeds from Agreement to Sale of property 0.64 -
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) 122.60 628.80

Repayement of borrowings
Proceeds from / (Purchase) of other Non-current financial assets - -
Borrowings (18.04) 10.30

Interest Paid - -
Dividend received 569.53 0.06
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) 551.48 10.36
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 243.98 (247.21)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 17.77 324.98
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 321.75 71.77

Components of cash and cash equivalents
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% in lakhs

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024

Cash on hand 22.73 0.85

Balances with scheduled banks:

- In current accounts 298.13 67.83

- In deposit accounts with original maturity less than 3 months 0.02 8.75

- Stamps in hand 0.30 0.03

- Stock of Stationery on hand at cost 321.75 0.31

Total Cash and cash equivalents 642.93 71.77

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (notes) are an integral part of the
financial statements.

Notes :
1. Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

2. The cash flow statement has been prepared under Indirect Method as per Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as under section 133
of CompaniesAct, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

As per our report of even date Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited

For H G Sarvaiya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 115705W L K B Shetty
Aspi Nariman Katgara Chairman

_ ) Managing Director Din: 01451944
E::przttél:hbhal G Sarvaiya Din: 06946494
Membership Number: 045038 Jyothi VB \éidy'c: Mananjay More
Irector

Director Din: 06904529

Place: Mumbai Nagarajan Sivaramakrishnan Din:07133349

Date: 30-05-2025 Director J M Panday

Din: 03060429 Place: Bengaluru Company Secretary/CFO

Date: 30-05-2025 Membership No: 4303
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Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025

1 Basis of preparation and Significant Accounting Policies
Background

Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Ltd., (“the Company” or “the Holding Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India
registered under the provision of Companies Act 1913. The main object of the company is to carry on the business of hire purchase
and leasing. Presently the company has discontinued the operation and concentrated the recovery of Hire purchase and Leasing
business. The Consolidated Financial Information of the Company comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as “the Group”) and its associates. The registered office of the company is situated at Bangalore, Karnataka, India. The company
has listed in BSE & NSE stock exchanges.

2 Significantaccounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this Consolidated Financial Information.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
a) Historical cost convention

The Consolidated Financial Information has been prepared under historical cost convention except for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS.

b) All the amounts included in Consolidated Financial Statements are reported in Indian Rupees (*) and all values are rounded off to
the nearest Lakhs except where otherwise indicated.

¢) Functional and presentation currency

ltemsincludedinthe Consolidated Financial Information of each of the Group’s entities and of its associate are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Consolidated Financial
Information is prepared in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Holding Company’s functional Currency.

d) Principles of consolidation

Consolidated Financial Information comprise the financial information of the Holding Company, and the entities controlled by the
Holding Company including its subsidiaries as at 31, March 2025 Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee); Exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its
returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group
has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether ithas power over aninvestee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee; Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; The
Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and  The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the Consolidated Financial Information from the date the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated Financial Information are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the Consolidated Financial
Information for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s
financial information in preparing the Consolidated Financial Information to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.
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The details of the consolidated entities are as follows:

Subsidiaries 2025 2024
1 Eldorado Investments Co. (P) Ltd. 81.00% 81.00%
2 Maharashtra Apex Asset Management Co.Ltd. 99.99% 99.99%
3 Manipal Crimson Estates & Properties Pvt. Ltd. 99.99% 99.99%
Associates
1 Manipal Home Finance Ltd. 38.11% 38.11%
2 Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (Kurlon Ltd.) 40.41% 38.25%
3 Manipal Springs Ltd. 22.97% 22.97%

3 Consolidation procedures
Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. Offset
(eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

Eliminate in full, intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities
of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory, are
eliminated in full). Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes” applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses
resulting from intragroup transactions.

The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in an associate. An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating policies. Interests in an associate are
accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of profit or loss and OCl of equity-accounted investees
until the date on which significant influence ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Non-
controlling interest in the results and the equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

Currentversus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities based on current/non-current
classification. An asset s treated as currentwhen:

It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; It is held primarily for the purpose of
trading;

Itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Aliability is currentwhen:
Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current and non current classification of assets and
liabilities.
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Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets
Property, plantand equipment

ltems of PPE are stated at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, ifany.

The cost of an item of a PPE comprises its purchase price including import duties, and other non-refundable purchase taxes or
levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Expenditure incurred on startup and commissioning of the project and/or substantial expansion, including the expenditure incurred
on trial runs (net of trial run receipts, if any) up to the date of commencement of commercial production are capitalised. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each period end date, are shown under other non-current assets and cost
of assets not ready forintended use before the period end, are shown as capital work-in- progress.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible assetis carried atits costless
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when itincreases the
future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.

Advances paid towards acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each period end date, are shown under other non-current
assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the period end, are shown as intangible asset under
development.

Depreciation and amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on stright line value method on cost of property, plant and equipment as
per the useful life specified in Part ‘C’ of Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013.

Derecognition

Anitem of PPE and intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fromits use and
disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an item of PPE and intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss.

Transitionto IndAS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of such property, plantand equipment and intangible assets.

Financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Debtinstruments atamortised cost
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Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to presentin other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. f the Group decides to classify an
equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the
OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss. These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity instrument at FVOCI

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities) when:

The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Consolidated Statement of
Profitand Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognitionis also recognisedin Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the Consolidated Statement of Assets and
Liabilities when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
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settle them on anet basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Impairment
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into a cash-generating unit
(CGU). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

The Group’s corporate assets (e.g., office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash
inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate
assetbelongs.

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets ofthe CGU (or group of CGUs) on a proratabasis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Group reviews at
reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if noimpairment loss had been recognized.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade, packing materials, and stores and
spares are carried at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost of inventories, other than finished goods and work-in-progress, is determined on the weighted
average basis. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of materials determined on the weighted average
basis and also includes an appropriate portion of allocable overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the
selling prices of related finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are
not written down below cost, except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished
products will exceed their netrealisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand (including imprest) and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it s either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Revenue recognition

The income from Suit Filed Accounts and Non-Performing Assets, Overdue compensation interest on debenture are recognised on
receipt basis.

Income from one time settlement of Deposit/Bonds (under Hardship Route) is credited to P&L A/c as and when the option is availed
by the Deposit/Bond Holder during the year.

Other revenues are recognized based on the nature of activity when consideration can be reasonably measured and there exists
reasonable certainty of its recovery.

Dividend income is recognized in the year in which the right to receive is established.
Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. Aliability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

Adefined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards
Government administered provident fund. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plan is recognised as an employee
benefit expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by
employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s gratuity benefit
scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the
fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) are recognised in other comprehensive income. The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at
the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed orwhen a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past
service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term employee benefits

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise in future service periods or
receive cash compensation during service or on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected
to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the currentand prior periods; that benefit s discounted to determine
its present value. The obligation is measured by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains
orlosses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the finance costs. Finance costs that are directly
attributable to the construction or production or development of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other
finance costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the finance costs eligible for capitalization. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period
of such borrowings.

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
-the amortised cost of the financial liability.
Income tax

Income tax expense comprises currentand deferred tax. Itis recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extentthatitrelates to a business combination, oritems recognised directly in equity orin OCI.

i) Currenttax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:

has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of taxable/ deductible temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of
carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

— taxable/ deductible temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

—taxable/ deductible temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets (DTA) include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 prevalent in
India, whichiis likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and taxable/ deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:

has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Operating leases

Assets acquired under leases other than finance leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless such payments are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
increases.

Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.
Segment reporting

The company is primarily engaged in the business of financial activities and managed as one entity for its various activities. There is
only one “business segment” and “geographical segment” and, therefore, the segment information as required by Ind AS 108 is not
provided by the company.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of the Holding
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
inresources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Measurement of fair values

Anumber of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e. as prices)
orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that
has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to
measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that
these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be
classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used
to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing this
Consolidated Financial Information is included in the respective notes.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note No. 4 Property, Plant & Equipment X in lakhs

Property plant and equipment Property plant and equipment on lease

- TOTAL
Particulars Office }j"urmture &| Motor Caf‘s & Plant & Machinery | Motar Vehicles | Gas Cylinders Furniture
Equipments Other Vehicles

COST
At 1st April 2023 18.75 0.61 530.04 5.11 3.20 9.37 567.08
Additions 0.63 - - - - - 0.63
Disposal - - - - -
Impairment Loss - - - - - - -

At 31st March 2024 19.38 0.61 530.04 5.11 3.20 9.37 567.71
Additions 0.79 - - - - - 0.79
Disposal -0.08 - - - - - -0.08
Asset Trfd Held for sale - - - - - -

At 31st March 2025 20.09 0.61 530.04 5.11 3.20 9.37 568.42

DEPRECIATION -

At 31st March 2023 7.04 0.50 530.03 5.11 3.20 9.37 555.25
Depreciation 2.22 0.06 - - - - 2.28
Disposal - - - - - R
Impairment Loss - - - - - -

Lease Terminal Adj. - - - - - - -

At 31st March 2024 9.26 0.56 530.03 5.11 3.20 9.37 557.53
Depreciation expense 1.86 0.03 - - - - 1.89
Disposal - R
Adjustments - - - - - -

At 31st March 2025 11.12 0.59 530.03 5.11 3.20 9.37 559.42

Net Block -
| At 31st March 2024 || 10.12 | 0.05 | 0.01- 10.18 |

| At 31st March 2025 || 8.97 | 0.02 || 0.01 | -] - -1 9.00 |
Note: 5: Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Software Total
Cost
As at 31 March 2023 0.36 0.36
Additions - -
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2024 0.36 0.36
Additions - -
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2025 0.36 0.36
Depreciation and Amortisation
As At 31 March 2023 0.32 0.32
Additions 0.03 0.03
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2024 0.35 0.35
Additions -
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2025 0.35 0.35
Net Block
At 31 March 2024 0.01 0.01

At 31 March 2025 [[ 001 | 0.01

No Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment has been carried out during the year
The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31-03-2025 Z in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
6 InvestmentProperties
Gross carrying amount
Opening balance 314.88 323.89
Addition 89.43 -
Disposal -9.01
Closing balance 404.31 314.88
Depreciation and impairment
Opening balance 48.22 50.59
Depreciation 1.69 1.74
Disposal - 4.1
Closing balance 49.91 48.22
Netblock 354.40 266.66
Description of Item of | Carrying Value Title Deed in Property held since Reason for not
Property (In Rupees) the name of which date being held in the
name of the company
Land - at Chanthar of 3 318.30 Vittal Pai 18-06-1961 Company has lease hold right over the property.
Brahmavar Mutation record is in company name.
Selling freehold right of this land requires Muli
owner's consent
Land -at Matapady of 3 10,052.90 Joseph Lobo 21-06-1963 Property Not
Brahmavar Transferred due to
Non Availablity of
original Document
Building - Shop No. 8 & 9 | ¥ 22,30,432.00 # Antonio Joao 24-05-1995 Shop No.9 still not reigstered
Ground Floor Commerce Fortunato Fernandes due to misplace of
House Miranda Road documents #
Margao, Goa

# Value of Rs. 22,30,432 for shop No 8 and 9 Title Deed of Shop No 8 is held in the name of company and Title deed of ShopNo 9 has
beenmisplaced in sub registered office and the company is planning to seek legal remedy

*None of the Title Deed Holder is a Promoter director or relative/ of promoter/director or employee of promoter/director.

Particulars

March 31,2025 | March 31,2024

7 Non CurrentInvestments
Investmentin Equity Intruments
A InvestmentinAssociates
Unquoted Equity Shares, Fair value through P&L

6013334 of sharesw.e.fMarch 2025.
58990 Manipal Springs Ltd. Shares of Rs. 100/- each
895000 Manipal Home Finance Ltd. Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Total
Less: Dimunition in the value of Investment

5693020 Kanara Consumer Products Limited (formerly Kurlon Ltd.) shares of Rs. 10/- each.

49,719.78 49,229.37

905.12 596.02
50,624.90 49,825.39
50,624.90 49,825.39
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

B Otherlnvestments

Quoted Equity Shares :

Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

16000 ICD SLtd. shares of Rs. 10/-each 2.96 2.78

Unquoted Equity Shares Others

Fair value through OCI

4,00,000 Canara Steel Limited Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 156.16 138.52

3000 General Investment & Commercial Corporation Ltd. shares of Rs. 10/-each 6.22 3.84

2000 Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Ltd.shares of Rs. 25/-each 14.14 12.80

4000 MPL Enterprises Ltd. Shares of Rs. 10/-each 2.00 1.83

58436 Mangala Investments Ltd. Shares of Rs. 10/-each 428.46 428.46

36368 Manipal Rajmahal Hotels Ltd. Shares of Rs. 10/-each 26.38 20.68

Total ::::: 636.32 608.91

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 2.96 2.78

Market value of quoted investments 6.86 5.99

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 633.36 606.13

Aggregate amount ofimpairmentin value of investments - -
8  OtherNon-Current Financial Assets

Security Deposit 10.00 10.00

Deposit more than 12 Monthys 3 245.50

Total ::::: 13.00 255.50
9  OtherTaxAssets -Non current

Advance Income-Taxand TDS - Net of Provision 354 448.58

MAT Credit 41.50 42.67

Total ::::: 395.51 491.25
10 OtherAsset

Non Current

Advance for purchase of property 201.72 201.72

Other Receivables 5.81 88.54

Security Deposit 2.38 2.38

Gratuity Asset 6.94 3.51

Less: Dimunition in the Value of Investment -68.58 -68.58

Total ::::: 148.27 227.57
11 Trade receivables - Current

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables - Dues exceeding Six Months - 21.01

Trade receivables - others -

Sub Total - 21.01
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X in lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Trade Receiveable ageing schedule: as on 31

-03-2025

Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
Less than| 6 Monthto |4 5 2.3 Total
6 Months 1 Year years years | More than 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - -
Considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - ) ) ) )
which have significant increase in credit risk
(iif) Undisputed Trade Receivables - ) ) ) )
Credit Impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered Good ) ) ) )
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk ) ) . )
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - ) ) ) )
Credit Impaired
Trade Receiveable ageing schedule: as on 31-03-2024
Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
Less than| 6 Monthto |4 5\ aore|2.3 vears Total
6 Months | 1 Year y y More than 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
Considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
Credit Impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Considered Good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -

Credit Impaired

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

12 Cashand cash equivalents
A.Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cashonhand
Balances with Banks
Deposits with maturity less than 3 months
Stampsinhand
Stock of Stationery on hand at cost

0.57 0.85
22.73 67.83
298.13 8.75
0.02 0.03
0.30 0.31
321.75 71.77
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025| March 31, 2024
13 OtherFinancial Asset
Current
OtherAdvances 4.00 4.56
Others Receivable 34.66 45.30
Others Deposite 6.17 12.95
Demand Loans 726.55 736.39
Staff Demand Loan 0.49 0.55
Input Tax Crediton GST 492 447
Bills Discounted 64.59 77.59
Interestaccrued but notdue - -
Interest accrued on Investments 3.28 523
Bank Deposit with Maturity Less than 12 months 351.87 132.76
Deposit with High court of Karnataka 1,395.75 1,395.75
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables -818.49 -855.58
Total ::::: 1,773.80 1,559.97
Loans & Advances to Promoters etc
2024-2025 2023-2024

Amount of loan
or advance in the
nature of loan
outstanding

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or
advance in the
nature of loan

outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of loans

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of loans

# All the Loans are repayable on Demand

made in the books on above loans.

Promoter -Mangala Investment Ltd., 60.89 5% 60.89 5%

Promoter - Efficient Management Services Pvt Ltd 173.14 13% 173.14 13%

Less: 100% Provision for doubtful receivables 234.03 ) 234.03 )
Net Impact 0.00 0.00

Director Nil Nil -

KMPs Nil Nil -

Above Loans Made when the company was a NBFC and its Certificate Of Registration Cancelled by RBI on 13th June 2002, and 100% Provision

Particulars

14  OtherAsset
Current
Deferred Revenue Expenses

15 Equity Share Capital
() Authorised Capital:

3,00,00,000 March 31,2025 (April 01, 2024: 30,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each
1,00,00,000 March 31,2025 (April 01,2024 ,1,00,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each

March 31,2025| March 31, 2024
0.45 0.64
0.45 0.64
3,000.00 3,000.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
4,000.00 4,000.00

118

MRACL 81St Annual Report 2024-25



ESTD 1943

Maha Rashtra Apex

Corporation Limited

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital (Fully Paid-up):

14,091,896 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-each fully Called-Up (P.Y.14,091,896 Equity Shares

of Rs 10/-each fully Called-Up)
Add: Forfeited Shares

Terms /rights attached to shares

1,409.19 1,409.19
2.59 2.59
1,411.78 1,411.78

The equity shares have a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholders is eligible for one vote per each share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
except in the case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the company(after dustribution of all preferential amounts including payment to the preference shareholders) in

proportion to their shareholding.

Details of shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

%

No. of Shares

%

Equity Shares

No. of Shares
M/s Manipal Holdings (P) Ltd 2488875
Mrs Jaya S Pai 1627365
M/s Chitrakala Inv. Trade & Business Fin. Ltd. 906297
M/s Manipal Metropolis Builders (P) Ltd. 1890150

17.66%
11.55%

6.43%
13.41%

2488875
1627365

906297
1890150

17.66%
11.55%

6.43%
13.41%

Reconciliation of Number of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting periods

Equity Shares March 31,2025 March 31,2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Atthe beginning of the year 14091896 1,409.19 14091896 1,409.19
Changes during the year - - - -
Atthe end of the year 14091896 1,409.19 14,091,896 1,409.19

Details of forfeited shares and amount originally paid - up

Equity Shares March 31,2025 March 31,2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares of3.10 Each 58204 2.59 58204 259
(vi) Share holding of Promoters

Promoter name Noofshares Percentageof  Percentage of

Total Shares Change

during the year
Manipal Metropolis Builders Pvt Ltd 1890150 13.41
Mangala Investments Ltd. 670000 4.75
Manipal Holdings Private Limited 2488875 17.66
General Investment And Commercial Corporation Ltd 38059 0.27
Chitrakala Investment Trade & Business Finance Ltd 906297 6.43
Efficient Management Services (P) Ltd. 400 0.00
Tonse Sudhakar Pai (Trustee - Ananth Trust) 391198 2.78
Jaya S Pai 1627365 11.55
Tonse Sudhakar Pai (Trustee - Trust Foundation) 393195 2.79
Sheela Pai 265184 1.88
Varada S Prabhu 562 0.00
T Satish U Pai 686 0.00
Manipal Home Finance Limited 141700 1.01
Total Shares Held By Promoters: 8813671 62.54
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T in lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

16
a.

ii)

iv)

Other Equity

Securities Premium

Atthe beginning of the year
Increase/(decrease) during the year

As atend of year

Capital Reserve
Atthe beginning of the year
Increase/(decrease) during the year

Atthe end of the year

Capital Redemption Reserve
Atthe beginning of the year
Increase/(decrease) during the year

Atthe end of the year

Special Reserve - [Pursuant to RBI (Amendment) Act, 1997]
Atthe beginning of the year
Increase/(decrease) during the year

Atthe end of the year

Other Reserves

General Reserve

Atthe beginning of the year
Increase/(decrease) during the year

As atend of year

Retained Earnings
Atthe beginning of the year
Profit/ (loss) for the year

Amountaviliable for apporoprations

Less : Appropration
Less: Negative Minority Interest

Balance at the End of the year

Other Compransive Income

Balance as per Last balance Sheet
Transfer from Statement of Profitand Loss
Deduction During the year

As atend of year
Capital Reserve / (Goodwill on Consolidation)

Total Other Reserves
Total Other Equity

998.14 998.14
998.14 998.14
633.35 507.23
-2.84 126.12
630.51 633.35
176.35 176.35
176.35 176.35
159.52 159.52
159.52 159.52
331.20 331.20
331.20 331.20
35,982.24 2,832.30
1,965.96 33,149.94
37,948.20 35,982.24
37,948.20 35,982.24
4,901.00 4,878.44
26.99 22.56
4,927.99 4,901.00
43,207.38 41,214.44
45,171.90 43,181.80
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
17 Borrowings
Non Current Borrowings - 18.04
18.04
18 Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Others 718 28.51
Total :::: 7.18 28.51
For the year ending 31st March 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
. More than Total
Unbilled | Less than 1 Year| 1-2 years| 2-3 years| ", years
(i) MSME - - ) ) - -
(ii) Others - 3.01 - - 417 7.18
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues -Others . _ - -
For the year ending 31st March 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
. More than Total
Unbilled | Less than 1 Year| 1-2 years| 2-3years| ", years
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(ii) Others - 24.34 - 417 - 28.51
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues -Others ; ; ) ;
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
19  OtherFinancial liabilities - Current
Secured
200 13.5% Redeemable Cumulative Preference shares of X 10/-each 0.20 0.20
Unpaid Creditors being outstanding Bonds/Deposits with interest 1,761.04 1,778.40
Deposit/Bonds with interest less than ¥ 5000/-* 48.60 48.60
Delayed period interest on deposit 1,225.32 1,236.63
(Secured by first charge on Co's financial assets, book debts & receivables)
Unsecured
Inter Corporate Deposits 561.81
Rent Security Deposit 33.04 19.86
TDS Payable 0.84 0.60
Lease Security Deposits - 438.78
Liabilities for Expenses 23.70 14.15
Other Payable 0.34 0.34
Gratuity payable -
OtherAdvances 18.04
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< in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Expenses /Gratuity Exp. Payable 1.61 26.94
Amount Received Pending Before Court -
Total :::: 3,112.74 4,126.31
19(a) Redeemable Cumulative Preference shares
316,200 14% Redeemable Cumulative Preference shares of *10/-each 31.62 31.62
31.62 31.62
Particular March 31,2025 March 31,2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
14% Preference share 316,200 31.62 316,200 31.62

Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares shall be redeemable after expiry of 5 years from the date of allotment. The shares are
entitled for preferential right over dividend (before the equity share holders) at the rate 14% which is to be proposed by the Board of
Directors and subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. however the shares are Cumulative
Preference Share and therefore the Shareholders are entitled to carry forward the dividend of a year to the forth coming year/s in case
the same is not declared in a year. In the event of liquidation such shareholders are eligible to receive the face value along with
cumulative dividend (after distribution of all preferential amount) before the distribution of assets to the equity share holde X In case the
assets are not sufficient to cover up the face value, then the same will be distributed in proportion to their shareholding if the surplus
available, after distribution of all preferential amount.

19(b)Advance Received for Sale of Property 1,273.37 1,273.37

Company entered in to an agreement to sell with Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon Limited) and Kurlon Enterprise
Limited, for the sale of Non agricultural Land measuring 233 cents, including RCC Building with 3 Floors, total Built-up area about
17149 Sq. Ftsituated in 76,Badagubettu Village, Udupi at survey No 102/16P2, 16P3,9,12 . As per the agreed terms Purchaser agreed
to release the funds out of the balance purchase price to the vendor as and when required for the payment of companies liabilities to the
deposit holde X This asset along with other assets is earmarked to secure the payment of deposit liabilities as mentioned in CP
30/2003. The sale and registration of the same in favour of the purchaser is subject to auction bidding and Karnataka High Court
Approval.

Total (19 +19(a) +19(b) 4,417.73 5,431.00
20 Otherliabilities
Current
Otherliabilities 2.85 5.63
Total :::: 2.85 5.63

21 REVENUE FROMOPERATIONS

Income from Hire Purchase, Lease, Loans & Advances 24.73 652.32
Lodging Business 19.32 16.21
Supervision Charges Received 92.04 202.86
Total ::::: 136.09 871.39

22 OTHERINCOME
Interest Income
OnBank Deposits 36.72 27.62
On Others 0.18 2.16
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Rent 18.07 3.16
Service Charges 5.06 7.96
Income from House Property 20.90 15.65
Dividend Income on long term Investments 569.53 0.06
Interest Remission from Bonds/Deposits 2.25 22.77
Profit/loss on Sale of Assets 0.11 116.10
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 0.19 14.20
Miscellaneous Receipts 2.01 2.24
Total ::::: 655.01 211.92
22.a. Dividend Income amounting to Rs. 569.53 lakhs is received from the
Associate company Kanara Consumer Products Limited(“*KCPL”).
23  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 117.02 195.68
Retainership Fees 9.60 9.86
Contribution to Providentand Other Funds 9.90 2212
Gratuity Expenses 0.30 0.88
Staff Welfare Expenses 8.79 6.85
Total ::::: 145.61 235.39
24  FINANCECOST
Deposit Interest cost 0.02 1.46
Intereston Income Tax -
Total ::::: 0.02 1.46
25 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 3.65 4.04
Total ::::: 3.65 4.04
26 OTHEREXPENSES
Electricity Expenses 2.98 2.58
Rent 12.56 18.73
Taxes and Licence 7.40 1.52
GSTPaid 2.04 452
Filing Fees 1.64 0.94
Insurance 0.28 0.22
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - -
Repairs and Maintenance
Buildings 4.51 3.45
Other Repairs & Maintenance 3.81 2.01
Vehicle Maintenance 0.55 0.58
Computers and other Service Charges 1.80 1.58
Society Maintainence Charges 0.17
Commission Paid 0.30
Interest on Delayed Payment of Property Tax/ GST 0.01
Communication expenses 0.40 0.31
CSR Expenditure 5.00 -
Maintenance Charges 0.88 2.54
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Advertisement Charges 1.77 7.99
Printing and Stationery 3.94 2.12
Postage and Telephones 0.82 0.78
Newspapers, Books & Periodicals 0.03 0.03
Travelling Expenditure 3.46 4.02
Legal & Professional Charges 31.98 50.49
Consultancy & Other Advisory Services 18.31 20.86
Directors - Sitting Fees 0.44 0.56
Paymentto Auditor as
i) Audit Fees 7.50 5.90
iii) Tax Matters 1.63 0.78
iv) Other Matters 2.65 2.83
v) Out Of Pocket Expenses 0.09
Reimbursement of Recovery Expenses 0.42 0.65
Miscellaneous Expenses 15.99 13.01
Ineligible GST 2.08 2.68
Investement Written off -
Sundry advance W/o - 1.86
Bank Charges 0.05 0.46
Total ::::: 135.50 154.00
26.a. The details of Corporate Social Responsibility ‘CSR’) as prescribed under section
135 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 s as follows:
Particular
i.Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 5.00 NA
ii.Amountapproved by the Board 5.00 NA
iii. Amount spent during the year on 5.00 NA
a) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
b) For purpose other than (a) above 5.00 NA
iv. Shortfall at the end of the year NA NA
v. Total of previous year shortfall NA NA
vi.Reason for shortfall NA NA
The Holding Company has transfered the total CSR obligation amounting to
Rs. 5 lakhs to the Manipal Academy of Health and Education
27  Exceptional ltems
Exceptional Income:
Reversal of Liability 1,000.59
Reversal of NPAProvision 37.09 176.22
Provision for Gratuity 1.40
Misc Credits - Exceptional Item 417
Bad Debts Recovered 84.34 64.83
1,127.59 241.05
Exceptional Expenses:
Bad Debts Written off 20.89 1.54
Impairment Loss -
20.89 1.54
Exceptional Expenses/ (Income) 1,106.71 239.51
Exceptional income includes an amount of Rs.1,000.50 lakhs pertaining to unsecured lease deposits and inter-corporate
deposit (ICD) liabilities, which are no longer payable and have been reversed during the year.
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% in lakhs
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
28  Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the period/year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (X Per Share) 10 10
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 14,091,896 14,091,896
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of period 14,091,896 14,091,896
Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of period 14,091,896 14,091,896
Profit / (Loss) for the period(‘) 1,965.96 33,149.94
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share not annualized (‘) 13.95 235.24
29 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
There are no Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom
the Company owes dues on account of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures
have been made. The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such
parties has been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
30. Fair Values
The carrying values of financials instruments of the Company are reasonable and approximations of fair values.
Particulars Carrying amount Fair Value
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans - - - -
Other Financial Assets 1,773.80 1,559.97 1,773.80 1,559.97
Trade receivable - 21.01 - 21.01
Assets classified as held for sale 3443 35.06 34.43 35.06
Cash and cash equivalents 321.75 71.77 321.75 17.77
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 2,129.98 1,693.81 2,129.98 1,693.81
Financial assets measured at fair value through
Statement of Profit and Loss
Investments (quoted) 2.96 2.78 6.86 5.99
Investments (unquoted)* 633.36 606.13 633.36 606.13
Financial assets measured at fair value
through statement of Profit & Loss 636.32 608.91 640.22 612.12
*Note : Does not Include Investment in Associate
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings - 18.04 - 18.04
Trade payables 7.18 28.51 718 28.51
Other financial liabilities 4,417.73 5,431.30 4,417.73 5,431.30
Total Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 4,424.91 5,477.85 4,424.91 5,477.85

The Management assessed that carrying amount of Loans, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Borrowings, Trade Payables and Other
Financial Assets& Liabilities are reasonable estimates of their Fair Value.
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31. Related Party Transactions

Relationship Related Parties
Directors are interested: Polo Queen Industrial Fintech Ltd.
Sirar Dhotre Solar (P) Ltd.

Sirar Solar Energies (P) Ltd.

Sew Facility Management (P) Ltd.

Pay Smart Investment (P) Ltd.

Sevalal Solar (P) Ltd.

8 Strategies Equity Managers Pvt. Ltd.
Maharashtra Apex Asset Management Co. Ltd.
Manipal Crimson Estate & Properties (P) Ltd.
Eldorado Investments Company (P) Ltd.
Acqua Business Consulting & Trading (P) Ltd.
Alpasara Finvest Care Advisory Private Limited

Key Management Personnel Mr Aspi Nariman Katgara-Managing Director
Mr. J.M.Panday-CFO & CS

Non-Executive Director Mr. K.B. Shetty
Mr Yazdin Jimmy Mistry

Mr. Nagrajan Shivaramkrishnan
Mr. Shashindra Bhat

Mr. S R Gowda

Mr. Gev Framroze Engineer
Holding Company Maha Rashtra Apex Corporation Ltd.,
Subsidiary Maharashtra Apex Asset Management Co. Ltd.

Manipal Crimson Estates & Properties Pvt. Ltd.
El'Dorado Investments Pvt. Ltd.

Associate Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon Ltd.)
Manipal Home finance Ltd.
Manipal Springs Ltd.

Related Party Transactions Details

1. Loans and Advance given and Recovered : % in lakhs
Transaction Value Outstanding Value
Name of the party
2025 2024 2025 2024
Maharashtra Apex Asset Management Company Ltd., 0.47 047 (115.54) (116.01)
Manipal Springs Ltd., 13.00 8.00 473.47 486.47

2. Advance Received for Purchase of Property

Transaction Value Outstanding Balance

Name of the party 2025 2024 2025 2024
Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon Ltd.) - - 3,300.00 3,300.00
Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon Ltd.) - - 1,273.37 1,273.37
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% in lakhs

3. Dividend Received

f Transaction Value Outstanding Balance
Name of the party 2005 2024 2025 2024
Kanara Consumer Products Ltd. (formerly Kurlon Ltd.) 569.3 - -
4. Remuneration to Managing Director
Transaction Value Outstanding Value
Name of the party
2025 2024 2025 2024
Sri Aspi Nariman Katgara 10.75 6.07 1.75 0.28
5. Remuneration to CFO
Transaction Value Outstanding Value
Name of the party
2025 2024 2025 2024
Sri J M Panday 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07
In accordance with the provision of Schedule - V of companies act 2013.
6. Rent Paid/Received
Transaction Value Outstanding Value
Name of the party
2025 2024 2025 2024
Manipal Crimson Estates & Properties Pvt Ltd. 1.50 1.50
Eldorado Investment Company Pvt Ltd. 1.50 1.50

32 As perthe Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement of the holding company sanctioned by the High Court of Karnataka under
section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 vide its order dated 08.10.2004 and filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Karnataka on 15.12.2004, which is the effective date, the holding company has not carried on any business of non-banking
financial company during the year except recoveries ofadvances donein earlier yearsand repaymentof liabilities.
Allthe Installments as perthe scheme have fallen due on 15th September 2009 and 15th June 2009 and aggregate short fall
inrepaymentas per the scheme upto 31.03.2025 amounts to Rs. 333.75 lakhs.

33 The company is prepared the accounts on going concern basis, as it has started implementing the scheme sanctioned by the
High Courtof Karnataka and the managementis of the view that the company will be able to recover its dues from most of the
borrowers/debtors and monitor effectively the deficit in operations.

34  The Property at Jai Bharath Industrial Estate, Jalahalli Camp Road, Yashvanthpur Bangalore was auctioned by the Karnataka
High court on 20/04/2012. M/s K C P Ltd. (Kurlon Ltd.) was the highest bidder. The bid amount of Rs. 3300.00 lakhs is received in
full. Registration is pending. The company is waiting for the auction bidder M/s KCP Ltd. (Kurlon Ltd.) to initiate the registration
process.

35 Contingent Liabilities:

No provision is made in the accounts for the disputed sales tax liability amountingto  Rs. 17.54 lakhs for the Assessment Year
1995-96 to 1996-97 as the appeal filed by the Company is pending disposal.

No Provision is made for Arrears of Cumulative Fixed Dividend from 31.03.2001 to maturity date for redemption amounts to Rs.
17.14lakhs.
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36

37

Deferred Tax

The holding company hasnot accounted Deferred Tax Asset resulting from accumulated losses and excess depreciation
claimed in Income-tax, because of uncertainty of availability of sufficient future taxable income. Deferred tax liability represents
that of the Subsidiaries.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments —as lessor

The Company has entered into leases on its property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the
terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives
recognised by the Company.

Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Currentincome tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income TaxAct, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of timing differences between
taxable income and occounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to the taxes on income levied by same
governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company
has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred
tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realised or virtually certain as the case may be.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that
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sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT, during the period that MAT is permitted to be set off under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (specified period). In the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in
accordance with the recommendations contained in the guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI), the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the
extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the
specified year.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.Due to the complexities involved
in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

38.
2024-25 2023-24  Variance (%) Reason for variance
1. CurrentRatio
CurrentAssets/Current Liabilities excluding Due to increase in
current maturities of Long-Term Borrowings) 0.27 0.12 125.00% current assets
2. DebtEquity Ratio
Total Debt/ Shareholders Equity NotApplicable NotApplicable - -
3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Earnings before Interest, Depreciation
and Tax/ Interest + Principal NotApplicable  NotApplicable - -
4. Returnon Equity
Net Profits after taxes — Preference Dividend Dueto .
(ifany) /Average Shareholder’s Equity 238.24 2871 929.74% ueloncreasein |
revenue from operations

5. Inventory turnoverratio
Costofgoods sold OR sales /Average Inventory NotApplicable NotApplicable - -

6. Tradereceivables turnover ratio
Net Credit Sales /Average Accounts Receivable NotApplicable NotApplicable - -

7. Trade payables turnoverratio

Net Credit Purchases /Average Trade Payables NotApplicable NotApplicable - Due to decrease

in current laibilities

8. Net Capital Turnover Ratio
Operating Revenue / Working Capital
(CurrentAsset - Current Liabilities) -2.43% -12.32% -80.27% Due to increase

in profit
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9. NetProfit Ratio

Duetoi in profit
Net ProfitAfter Tax (After Exceptional ltem)/ ue foincrease In prof

Value of Operating Revenue 246.70% -4.64% -293.49%
10. Returnon CapitaI.Emponed Decrease in fair value
EBIT/Average Capital Employed 0.03% 0.04% -34.28% gain in financial
instruments -
11. ReturnonInvestment quoted shares
Income Generated From Investment/Average
Investment 1192.651% 0.006%  18930874.41% Sale of quoted
investments,

alsoincreasein
dividend received
from the Assoicate
39  OtherRegulatory Information
(i)The Group holds all the title deeds of immovable property in its name except Disclosed in Note Number 6 Under Investment

Properties.

(i) During the year, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipments (including Right of Use
Asset).

(iii) During the year Company has not revalued its intangible Property, Plant & Equipments (including Right of Use
Asset).

(iv) The company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

(v)During the year, the Company has not given any loans to the Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the Related Parties either
severally or jointly, with any other person, however Loans advanced in earlier years balance outsanding for which 100%
Provision Made on those balances are Disclosed under Note No: 13

(vi) There are no Capital Workin Progress

(vii) There are no Intangible Asset under Development.

(viii) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for
holding any Benami property.

(ix) Group has Not availed any loan from Bank

(x) The Group is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender , However RBI has cancelled
Certificate of Registration with effect from 13th June 2002.

(xi) As per the information available with the Company, it does not have any kind of transaction / relation with Companies struck-
off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 o(erstwhile Section 560 of the CompaniesAct, 1956).

(xii) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction thereof, which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

(xiii) (A) During the year company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shalll:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) (B) During the year company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(xiv) The company has not traded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year

40  AuditTrail
The proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules
2021 requires companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts, to use only such accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of accounts along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The
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Group has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software. Further,
where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, the audit trail feature has not been tampered

with
41 Events after the reporting period

There is no subsequent event after reporting period for reportable.

42 Previous year comparatives

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to current year classification.

As per our report of even date
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